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MUNICIPAL FINANCE
FO A | OFFICERS’ ASSOCIATION
OF ONTARIO

MFOA Response to PSAB Exposure Draft: The Conceptual
Framework for Financial Reporting in the Public Sector and Exposure
Draft: Financial Statement Presentation, Proposed Section PS 1202

Introduction

About MFOA

The Municipal Finance Officers' Association of Ontario (MFOA), established in 1989, is the
professional association of municipal finance officers with more than 4500 individual members.
We represent individuals who are responsible for handling the financial affairs of municipalities
and who are key advisors to councils on matters of finance policy. MFOA promotes the interests
of our members in carrying out their statutory and other financial responsibilities through
advocacy, information sharing, networking opportunities, and through the promotion of fiscal
sustainability. We also provide members with training and education to enable continuous
professional development and to support excellence in municipal finance.

The following submission is made in partnership with MFOA’s Committee on Accounting and
Financial Reporting, consisting of municipal finance officers across Ontario. Our comments
build on our previous submission to PSAB on their 2015 Consultation Paper 3.

Objectives
We understand that PSAB is proposing changes to the Conceptual Framework because:

e |tis necessary for a standard setter to periodically review its conceptual framework to
ensure it remains relevant.

o Stakeholders asked PSAB to look at the existing conceptual framework to ensure it
properly reflects and is grounded in the public sector environment.

e Some standards-level issues made some stakeholders, such as the 2007-2009 Joint
Working Group, question the foundations of public sector financial reporting and they
asked PSAB to reconfirm their appropriateness.

MFOA has reviewed the Conceptual Framework Exposure Draft with the intent of ensuring that
the updated framework is grounded in the Ontario municipal public sector environment. With
this in mind, the following themes were identified for an improved conceptual framework:

e Promoting accountability: one major characteristic of the public sector environment is
that they are accountable to the general public. Accountability is realized through federal
and provincial legislation, as well as legislated bodies such as the ombudsman. As such,
public sector financial reporting should be presented in a format that can be used by the
lay person.

e Promoting transparency: building on accountability, public sector enterprises are often
scrutinized by the public, the media, and other levels of government to provide free and
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transparent information. Financial reporting should elevate a public sector enterprise’s
transparency to its stakeholders.

o No added complexity: public sector enterprises, and especially municipal governments,
are under significant resource constraints. This has been further compounded by the
ongoing pandemic. One of MFOA'’s long-standing principles is that reporting
requirements should not be onerous to municipal staff, and this principle applies to
financial reporting. While change can be necessary, it should not create further
complexity for either the creator or the user.

General Comments on the Conceptual Framework

MFOA supports the overall objectives of the conceptual framework. As the foundational
framework for public sector financial reporting, we believe a regular review of the framework is
key to guaranteeing that financial reporting achieves the goals of providing transparency and
maintaining accountability to the public. In that view, the framework’s overarching objective to
provide financial information for accountability purposes to primary users is aligned with MFOA’s
perspective. However, we believe there are some minor amendments to the conceptual
framework that could further PSAB’s goals of transparency and accountability.

1. Amend Chapter Two to clarify the goal of revising the characteristics of public
sector entities

In general, we believe Chapter Two should be expanded to provide clarification for the goal of
revising the characteristics of public sector entities. Public sector entities encompass a broad
array of entities, and we understand that it is a difficult task to define characteristics that will
resonate with all entities. However, even within the municipal sector there is a great deal of
difference when using the lens of the characteristics identified. For example, while it is true that
longevity can be a characteristic of public sector entities, within the municipal context this is not
always a given when considering issues such as amalgamation, or dissolution of certain
municipal bodies, like the Local Health Integrated Network.

2. Amend paragraph 2.69 to expand the definition of longevity as a characteristic of
public sector entities to provide more detail on what the term encompasses

We agree that longevity can be a characteristic of public sector entities. However, the
description of longevity should be expanded to provide more detail on what longevity
encompasses. We believe that the definition is trying to define longevity within the context of an
entity’s duty to be stewards of public resources. But without further context, a situation such as
amalgamation would go against the concept of longevity.

3. Amend the definition of unique governance structure in paragraph 2.37 to make
reference to public sector entities’ unique interdependency on other levels of
government to fulfill their obligation to serve the public

We agree that public sector entities’ unique governance structure is a key characteristic, but it
should be expanded to make reference to public sector entities’ unique interdependency on

2
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other levels of government to fulfill their obligation to serve the public. Similarly, due to limited
sources of funding, municipalities are particularly dependent on provincial funding. For many

Ontario municipalities, provincial funding accounts for a large proportion of annual revenue to
pay for essential services. The provincial-municipal relationship differs across Canada, where
municipal responsibilities are dependent on provincial legislation.

For instance, in Ontario, there are some services that can largely be seen as a municipal
responsibility (such as water services, wastewater treatment, solid waste collection, etc.). There
are a number of other services that are intertwined with the provincial government such as
health and social services. However, to the general public there is no discrepancy between who
provides the service; their focus is on whether the service is being delivered.

4. Amend paragraphs 2.65-2.67 to provide clarification to non-exchange
transactions, in particular, within the context of the volume of non-exchange
transactions.

We agree that the financial significance of non-exchange transactions is a key characteristic for
public sector entities. Indeed, within the municipal context, taxes, user fees, fines, and penalties
contribute a considerable portion of revenues. However, we recommend providing clarification
on what volume means in this context. Municipalities vary widely in population sizes, which
impact the volume of non-exchange transactions that each municipality receives. While we
assume that volume refers to the number of non-exchange transactions in relation to the overall
number of transactions that make up revenue, clearly defined parameters would be beneficial.

5. Amend paragraph 2.19(C) to remove the word “generally” from the description of
taxation

Taxes are not meant to be an exact reflection of the value of services received by each
individual taxpayer. Indeed, while taxes are the main source of revenue for public sector entities
to pay for services for the public, it is a misconception that an individual’s tax dollars go solely to
their individual services. Tax revenue pays for services that benefit the entire community,
regardless of whether the individual taxpayer may or may not use that service. Likewise, user
fees, grants, and other non-taxation revenue help to fund a large portion of municipal services.

We believe that maintaining the term “generally’ in paragraph 2.19(C) adds further confusion to
the lay person. Removing the term generally would make the statement more definitive that
taxes and services are not co-related in any way.

Comments on Budget Concerns within the Conceptual Framework
and Proposed PS 1202, Financial Statement Presentation

6. Further clarification is needed within the proposal for public sector entities to
communicate that it is not the intent of PSAB to alter the way in which municipal
budgets are currently prepared. Rather, it should be clearly stated that a
secondary budget summary or some other means of communication is
recommended, clearly providing information as required under O. Reg. 284/09 and

3
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any further information as may be deemed necessary, that transitions the
traditional budget document such that it can be presented on the same basis as
the financial statements.

It is our understanding that it is not the intent of PSAB to have municipalities change how their
budgets are prepared, and we support this intent. Greater clarification is required within the
proposal for public sector entities to communicate that it is not the intent of PSAB to alter the
way in which municipal budgets are currently prepared. Rather, it should be clearly stated that
a secondary budget summary or some other means of communication is recommended, clearly
providing information as required under O. Reg. 284/09 and any further information as may be
deemed necessary, that transitions the traditional budget document such that it can be
presented on the same basis as the financial statements.

However, it must be recognized that, for ready comparison on financial statements, how the
budget (or at least the summary of the budget) is presented will require modification to align to
the new standard. Otherwise, users still could not pick up the budget document and easily
locate the comparative numbers on the financial statements. Adjustments to the budget for
comparative purposes would be completed in the background, which is what occurs now.

Currently, Ontario municipalities complete their budgets on either a cash or modified accrual
accounting basis, as legislated by the Municipal Act, 2001 and O. Reg. 284/09. By regulation, it
is not mandatory to include amortization, post-employment benefits, and solid waste landfill
closure and post-closure expenses within the approved budget. Similarly, while municipalities
must inform municipal councils of these items and the impact that they may have on future
tangible capital asset funding requirements, this information does not need to be adopted as
part of the budget. While the differences in budget presentation between cash and accrual are
significant, forcing a change in presentation may be excessive for the value it may or may not
provide as a comparator on the financial statement.

We urge PSAB to recognize that to implement a change to how a budget is presented, even for
comparison to Financial Statements, will require assistance through education and training
resources, as well as additional time to implement.

General Comments on Timing

7. Reconsideration of the timing of PS 1201 and PS 1202 and/or consider blending
the two reporting models to limit the number and frequency of changes that will
be required

MFOA supports the new reporting model and agrees that it will provide additional clarity and
understandability for the users of the financial statements. However, we have significant
concerns with respect to the implementation of the new reporting model under PS 1202,
effective April 1, 2024, which follows closely on the heels of the recently revised reporting
model, effective April 1, 2022. Within PS 1201, the revised reporting model adds the new
statement of Remeasurement Gains and Losses to support PS 3450, Financial Instruments,
with related changes to other statements for wording, disclosure, etc.

4
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Amending the structure of the financial statements within various software applications,
adjusting the general ledger account structure to accommodate reporting requirements, and
revising internal Financial Information Return templates for ease of Provincial reporting takes
time, money and effort. In addition, staff and members of council alike must be trained on how
to account for and understand each new set of statements to enhance operations and,
ultimately, decision-making. To implement two differing reporting models within such a short
time frame will put a strain on municipal resources. MFOA strongly encourages reconsideration
of the timing and/or blending of the two reporting models to limit the number and frequency of
changes that will be required.

We also urge PSAB to recognize the constraints of the pandemic. Respectfully, PSAB has
already delayed the effective dates of all upcoming standards by one year. We, as well as our
members, appreciate this delay. However, an adverse effect is that municipalities must adopt a
fair number of standards over the coming two years, including but not limited to:

- PS 1201, Financial Statement Presentation (April 1, 2022)
- PS 2601, Foreign Currency Translation (April 1, 2022)

- PSS 3041, Portfolio Investments (April 1, 2022)

- PS 3450, Financial Instruments (April 1, 2022)

- PS 3280, Asset Retirement Obligations (April 1, 2022)

- PS 3400, Revenue (April 1, 2023)

- PSG-8, Purchased Intangibles (April 1,2023)

As stated above, we also believe that implementing this standard will require time and training

resources for municipalities. Blending the implementation of PS 1201 to coincide with PS 1202
would allow PSAB, as well as MFOA, to prepare workshops and resources for municipalities to
ensure that municipal staff are prepared.

The proposed standard PS 1202, as well as the proposed Conceptual Framework, will have a
significant impact on public sector financial reporting which is an already onerous activity. While
these changes are likely to improve clarity, understandability, and usability of financial
statements for end users, we must ensure that staff preparing the financial statements are able
to fully adopt these new concepts to guarantee success across the sector.

General Comments on Terminology

The conceptual framework and proposed PS 1202 includes a number of changes to
terminology. Overall, we believe that most of the changes to terminology provide greater
understandability to financial statements for users of the statements. The following
recommendations are some of our key suggestions to further improve clarity for the lay person.

8. Amend paragraph 3.20 so labour force only includes recognition of value based
on current usage and payment for services

We appreciate that PSAB is expanding the concept of service capacity to include non-financial
activities, and we understand that the skills and capabilities of a public sector entity’s labour

5
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force can fall under service capacity. These types of non-financial aspects of service capacity
are beyond the scope of municipalities to value and quantify. Recognition of their value should
remain based on current usage and payment for services (such as salaries and wages).

9. Amend paragraph 3.20(A) to explicitly state user fees as a way to raise public
resources

We recommend that paragraph 3.20(A) should be amended to explicitly state user fees as a
way to raise public resources. Particularly in the municipal sector, user fees make up a large
portion of revenues. The power to impose user fees affects an entity’s service capacity, as in
some cases such as water or wastewater user fees, public parking, or the use of a recreational
arena, whereby the fee directly impacts the financial capacity to provide said service.

10. Amend paragraphs 7.08-7.11 to maintain the term “reliability” instead of “faithful
representation”

We are not supportive of the proposed change to “faithful representation”. We believe that this
term would increase confusion and would necessitate a review of the definition when financial
statements are being reviewed. We believe that the use of “reliability” is more appropriate and
better understood for users of the financial statements.

11. The terms “economic resources” and “economic obligations” are not as intuitive
as the terms “assets” and “liabilities” for users of financial statements. More
clarity should be provided in the definitions under the Glossary

We agree with the broader concepts of “economic resources” and “economic obligations”,
encompassing some of the more nebulous aspects of service capacity on items that may not be
readily measured or quantified. In addition, we appreciate the continued use of the terms
“assets” and “liabilities” on the face of the financial statements as terms that are readily
understood by users of the financial statements and incorporate items that are measurable and
quantifiable. The change in terminology seems to follow the proposed framework’s theme of
incorporating unmeasurable transactions and considerations within entities. However, this new
terminology is not as intuitive as the terms “assets” and “liabilities” for the users of financial
reports. As such, more clarity should be provided within the conceptual framework. Similarly,
PSAB should consider that preparers will need time to adjust to these new terms, as “economic
resources” and “economic obligations” are used throughout the framework

12. Amend paragraphs 9.37-9.40 to provide clarification on the concept of Going
Concern to add the potential for public sector entities to end through sale,
amalgamation, etc.

Similar to our discussion above with respect to longevity, further clarity around going-concern
may be required. While we agree that government organizations are long-term organizations,
there is the potential for these organizations to come to an end through sale, amalgamation, etc.
There exists the potential that all assets and liabilities will simply be absorbed into the next or
new entity, limiting any variance in value and minimizing any going-concern issues. Both the
going-concern concept as well as the longevity concept need to be better defined and/or inter-
connected to reduce confusion.

6
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13. Revisit the terms “accumulated surplus or deficit” in PS 1202 and consider a new
term that can reduce inherent biases by users of financial statements and
considers the link to service capacity

Within the proposed changes for the Statement of Financial Position, the terminology
“accumulated surplus or deficit” is retained. We understand that the accumulated surplus or
deficit is a crucial indicator of financial performance, however using the terms surplus/deficit do
not connote their true meaning in this context. Surplus presents an inherent bias when read by a
lay person, as they perceive a surplus to be excess funds that are unaccounted for. This
understanding has led to a perception of the taxpayer being over-taxed; however, a municipal
surplus is often funds reserved for future obligations such as asset replacements, or paying
retirement benefits. Similarly, a deficit does not indicate poor financial planning, but can be the
result of reporting an amortization expense or an unexpected emergency like a natural disaster.

The use of surplus and deficit has been a point of contention between preparers and users of
financial statements. We believe that PSAB should revisit the concept of accumulated surplus or
deficit to find a more neutral term that better describes the changes in a municipality’s net
financial position.

We believe that a replacement term for “accumulated surplus or deficit” should tie back to a
public sector entity’s service capacity. As highlighted in the proposed Conceptual Framework,
service capacity is one of the most important concepts of a public sector entity, and as such, its
finances are intrinsically linked to it’s ability to provide services.

Similar to the proposed changes to terminology in the Conceptual Framework to remove biases
and improve understandability, we believe a new term will allow users to better understand the
intention of the presentation of financial statements.

14. Amend paragraph .005 in PS 1202 to provide clarification on the differences
between financial and non-financial assets and liabilities

We agree in principle with the new definitions of financial assets, non-financial assets, financial
liabilities, and non-financial liabilities. However, more clarity is required to distinguish the
differences between financial and non-financial assets/liabilities.

The definitions provided in paragraph .005 do not provide a clear picture of what these
categories entail. By these definitions, a financial asset can be used to settle financial liabilities,
while financial liabilities are liabilities that can be settled using financial assets. At the same
time, non-financial assets are all other assets that are not financial. This is not a very
straightforward definition. We appreciate PSAB’s broad definition may allow more autonomy for
public sector entities to categorize their assets and liabilities, but in order to create comparable
financial statements across the sectors, definitions should be more precise.

For instance, based on the definitions provided it is unclear whether contaminated sites would
be considered a financial or non-financial liability. We recommend that the Standard provide
more examples of non-financial assets and liabilities to avoid confusion.

We appreciate the opportunity for MFOA and its Accounting and Financial Reporting Committee
to provide comments on the Exposure Draft: The Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting

7
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in the Public Sector and Exposure Draft: Financial Statement Presentation, Proposed Section
PS 1202. Should you have any questions, please contact MFOA'’s Executive Director Donna

Herridge (donna@mfoa.on.ca).

Members of MFOA’s Accounting and Financial Reporting Committee

Brad Brookman
Municipality of North Grenville
Sandy Calandra
Region of Peel
Marie Chan

City of Vaughan
Chris Chen
AMONTario

Manel Daniel

City of Toronto
Patrick Kelly
Township of Wilmot
Sanjay Kiran
Region of Halton

Maja Kuzmanov

City of Brampton

Cynthia Laprade
Township of Rideau Lakes
Eliza Mclaren

Region of York

Brock Piddle

Municipality of Chatham-Kent
Martin Russell

Region of York

Karyn Smithard-Costanzo
Region of Halton

Staff members: Suzanna Dieleman, Manager of Policy; Damaris Lara, Policy Team Lead;

Christine Duong, Senior Policy Advisor
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Finance Department
Ve - Rachel Wainwright-van Kessel
905-727-3123 ext. 4772

Town of Aurora

e
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100 John West Way,
Box 1000, Aurora, ON L4G 6J1

Michael Puskaric, MBA, CPA, CMA
Director, Public Sector Accounting Board
277 Wellington Street West
Toronto, Ontario M5V 3H2
May 6, 2021

Dear Michael Puskaric,

RE: Letter of Support for MFOA’s Submission Exposure Draft — The Conceptual
Framework for Financial Reporting in the Public Sector and Exposure Draft —
Financial Statement Presentation, Proposed Section PS 1202

| am writing to provide comments in support of the Municipal Finance Officers’
Association of Ontario’s submission to the Public Sector Accounting Board’'s (PSAB)
Exposure Draft on the Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting in the Public
Sector and Exposure Draft for Financial Statement Presentation, Proposed Section PS
1202.

As the Treasurer of the Town of Aurora, | believe the updated conceptual framework
and accompanying financial statement presentation should be grounded in the
principles of promoting accountability, promoting transparency, and not adding
complexity for the preparers and users of financial statements. Public sector
enterprises, in particular municipal governments, understand the importance of financial
reporting as an accountability measure to the general public and other levels of
government. However, as identified in MFOA’s submission to PSAB, some of the
proposed changes within the Exposure Drafts carry unintended consequences of
adding confusion and complexity for both preparers and users of financial statements.

To successfully update the Conceptual Framework and Financial Statement
Presentation, | support MFOA’s recommendations:

1. Amend Chapter Two of the Conceptual Framework to clarify the goal of revising
the characteristics of public sector entities

2. Amend paragraph 2.69 to expand the definition of longevity as a characteristic of
public sector entities to provide more detail on what the term encompasses

3. Amend the definition of unique governance structure in paragraph 2.37 to make
reference to public sector entities’ unique interdependency on other levels of
government to fulfill their obligation to serve the public

4. Amend paragraphs 2.65-2.67 to provide clarification to non-exchange
transactions, in particular, within the context of the volume of non-exchange
transactions

5. Amend paragraph 2.19(C) to remove the word “generally’ from the description of
taxation
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6. Further clarification is needed within the proposal for public sector entities to
communicate that it is not the intent of PSAB to alter the way in which municipal
budgets are currently prepared. Rather, it should be clearly stated that a
secondary budget summary or some other means of communication is
recommended, clearly providing information as required under O. Reg. 284/09
and any further information as may be deemed necessary, that transitions the
traditional budget document such that it can be presented on the same basis as
the financial statements

7. Reconsideration of the timing of PS 1201 and PS 1202 and/or consider blending
the two reporting models to limit the number and frequency of changes that will
be required

8. Amend paragraph 3.20 so labour force only includes recognition of value based
on current usage and payment for services

9. Amend paragraph 3.20(A) to explicitly state user fees as a way to raise public
resources

10.Amend paragraphs 7.08-7.11 to maintain the term “reliability” instead of “faithful
representation”

11.The terms “economic resources” and “economic obligations’ are not as intuitive
as the terms “assets” and “liabilities” for users of financial statements. More
clarity should be provided in the definitions under the Glossary

12.Amend paragraphs 9.37-9.40 to provide clarification on the concept of Going
Concern to add the potential for public sector entities to end through sale,
amalgamation, etc.

13.Replace “accumulated surplus or deficit” with “accumulated results of operations”
in PS 1202 in order to reduce inherent biases by users of financial statements

14. Amend paragraph .005 in PS 1202 to provide clarification on the differences
between financial and non-financial assets and liabilities

Please note that, within the municipal sector, the budget document is deemed to be the
most important financial document produced by municipalities. Coupled with regular
financial reporting, the budget document supersedes the value of the financial
statements to municipal councils in almost all circumstances. Public sector entities
share the common goal of providing accountability and transparency to the general
public, but time, clarity, and resources are required for meaningful work to be
completed. Should you wish to follow up on this letter, please contact Rachel
Wainwright-van Kessel, CPA, CMA at rvankessel@aurora.ca.

Sincerely,

cc. Donna Herridge, Municipal Finance Officers’ Association of Ontario
(donna@mfoa.on.ca)
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Clarington

Michael Puskaric, MBA, CPA, CMA
Director, Public Sector Accounting Board
277 Wellington Street West

Toronto, Ontario M5V 3H2

May 6, 2021
Dear Michael Puskaric,

RE: Letter of Support for MFOA’s Submission Exposure Draft — The Conceptual
Framework for Financial Reporting in the Public Sector and Exposure Draft —
Financial Statement Presentation, Proposed Section PS 1202

| am writing to provide comments supporting the Municipal Finance Officers’ Association
of Ontario’s submission to the Public Sector Accounting Board’s (PSAB) Exposure Draft
on the Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting in the Public Sector and
Exposure Draft for Financial Statement Presentation, Proposed Section PS 1202.

As the Treasurer for the Municipality of Clarington, | believe the updated conceptual
framework and accompanying financial statement presentation should be grounded in
the principles of promoting accountability, promoting transparency, and not adding
complexity for the preparers and users of financial statements. In particular municipal
governments, public sector enterprises understand the importance of financial reporting
as an accountability measure to the general public and other levels of government.
However, as identified in MFOA’s submission to PSAB, some of the proposed changes
within the Exposure Drafts carry unintended consequences of adding confusion and
complexity for both preparers and users of financial statements.

To successfully update the Conceptual Framework and Financial Statement
Presentation, | support MFOA’s recommendations:

1. Amend Chapter Two of the Conceptual Framework to clarify the goal of revising
the characteristics of public sector entities

2. Amend paragraph 2.69 to expand the definition of longevity as a characteristic of
public sector entities to provide more detail on what the term encompasses

3. Amend the definition of unique governance structure in paragraph 2.37 to make
reference to public sector entities’ unique interdependency on other levels of
government to fulfill their obligation to serve the public

4. Amend paragraphs 2.65-2.67 to provide clarification to non-exchange
transactions, in particular, within the context of the volume of non-exchange
transactions

5. Amend paragraph 2.19(C) to remove the word “generally’ from the description of
taxation

The Corporation of the Municipality of Clarington, 40 Temperance Street, Bowmanville, ON L1C 3A6
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6. Further clarification is needed within the proposal for public sector entities to
communicate that it is not the intent of PSAB to alter how municipal budgets are
currently prepared. Instead, it should be clearly stated that a secondary budget
summary or some other means of communication is recommended, clearly
providing information as required under O. Reg. 284/09 and any further
information as may be deemed necessary, that transitions the traditional budget
document such that it can be presented on the same basis as the financial
statements

7. Reconsideration of the timing of PS 1201 and PS 1202 and/or consider blending
the two reporting models to limit the number and frequency of changes that will
be required

8. Amend paragraph 3.20, so labour force only includes recognition of value based
on current usage and payment for services

9. Amend paragraph 3.20(A) to explicitly state user fees as a way to raise public
resources

10.Amend paragraphs 7.08-7.11 to maintain the term “reliability” instead of “faithful
representation”

11.The terms “economic resources” and “economic obligations’ are not as intuitive
as the terms “assets” and “liabilities” for users of financial statements. More
clarity should be provided in the definitions under the Glossary

12. Amend paragraphs 9.37-9.40 to clarify the concept of Going Concern to add the
potential for public sector entities to end through sale, amalgamation, etc.

13.Replace “accumulated surplus or deficit” with “accumulated results of operations”
in PS 1202 to reduce inherent biases by users of financial statements

14. Amend paragraph .005 in PS 1202 to provide clarification on the differences
between financial and non-financial assets and liabilities

Please note that, within the municipal sector, the budget document is deemed to be the
most important financial document produced by municipalities. Coupled with regular
financial reporting, the budget document supersedes the value of the financial
statements to municipal councils in almost all circumstances.

| would also add that the users of financial statements for municipal governments and
associated organizations are vastly different than those for senior levels of government
and crown agencies. A private sector analogy would be the user needs and complexity
of private companies and publicly traded companies. Core fundamentals are shared
between the accounting standards for those entity types, but standard setters have
recognized that one set of standards does not work for all businesses. The Board
should consider if it is appropriate to the needs of the users to have one set of
standards for all levels of government.

The Corporation of the Municipality of Clarington, 40 Temperance Street, Bowmanville, ON L1C 3A6
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Public sector entities share the common goal of providing accountability and
transparency to the general public, but time, clarity, and resources are required to
complete meaningful work. Should you wish to follow up on this letter, please contact
me.

Sincerely,

Trevor Pinn, CPA, CA
Director of Financial Services/Treasurer
Municipality of Clarington

cc. Donna Herridge, Municipal Finance Officers’ Association of Ontario
(donna@mfoa.on.ca)

The Corporation of the Municipality of Clarington, 40 Temperance Street, Bowmanville, ON L1C 3A6
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May 6, 2021

Michael Puskaric, CPA, CMA
Director, Public Sector Accounting
Public Sector Accounting Board
277 Wellington Street West
Toronto, ON M5V 3H2

Re: Exposure Drafts: Financial Statement Presentation, Proposed Section PS 1202 & Consequential
Amendments Arising from the Financial Statement Presentation Standard, Proposed Section 1202

Dear Sir,

Thank you for the opportunity to comment on the above-noted documents. MNP LLP is one of Canada’s
largest chartered professional accountancy and business advisory firms, with a significant focus on clients
in the public sector. We believe that we are well positioned to provide feedback on this important issue.

We have reviewed the Exposure Drafts and have provided our response to the specific questions noted
below.

Question: Do you agree with the proposed new financial statement presentation standard?

Overall, we agree with the proposed new financial statement presentation standard. The proposed
reporting model improves the understandability and usefulness of the information captured in the
financial statements of a public sector entity.

While the net debt indictor is useful for some, the removal of the indicator from the face of the
Statement of Financial Position will help the majority of users better understand public sector entities’
financial position. Rather than using them to directly generate revenue/returns, public sector entities
utilize their capital assets to provide services to rate payers. While taxation is not a direct reciprocal
transaction, the majority of rate payers view their tax payment to be in return for the services the
public sector entity provides to them and to their community members. Users understand that when
capital assets are financed, the debt will be repaid as the capital asset is utilized for its intended
purpose. The presentation on the face of the Statement of Financial Position of a large net debt
position, which is supported by capital assets, can be misunderstood by some financial statement
users. The proposal of net assets versus net liabilities as the key indicator of financial position is the
presentation format users are accustomed to and understand from their use of for-profit (private
and/or public company) and not-for-profit financial statements. We agree that the net financial assets
versus net financial liabilities measure continues to have usefulness for some users and retaining the
former net-debt position on a separate statement is appropriate.
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Further, we agree with the removal of the mandatory statement of changes in net debt as we believe
there was minimal benefit derived from this statement as the key components that represent the
change in net financial assets or net debt are also presented on the proposed Statement of Changes in
Net Assets (Net Liabilities) and/or the Statement of Cash Flow. For those entities where the change in
net debt is considered beneficial to users, we agree with the option to present this on the statement of
changes in net assets or net liabilities.

We agree with the presentation of financial and non-financial assets and liabilities on the face of the
Statement of Financial Position. However, we believe that the standard should provide additional
clarity around what would be considered a non-financial liability, including examples. This would assist
users to understand the statements and ensure more consistency of classification among public sector
entities.

Overall we agree with the proposed budget requirements including the conditions when an amended
budget could be presented. The guidance will provide consistency in application by public sector
entities when budget amendments exist, ensuring financial statement users do not have uncertainty as
to which budget figures are being presented. Further we agree with the requirement for an entity with
no budget prepared or approved to provide disclosure of this fact. While we agree that a budget to
actual comparison is key information for financial statement users, we also agree that a financial
reporting framework can not dictate an entity’s governance practices (i.e., whether it chooses to
prepare or approve a budget). Users of financial statements do not understand why an entity which
does not have a budget, or has not approved its budget, is required to have an audit report
modification. Users of financial statements will better understand these situations through financial
statement disclosure rather than audit report modification.

Question: Do you agree with the effective date of April 1, 2024, to implement the financial statement
presentation standard, Section PS 1202?

We agree with the effective date of April 1, 2024. This effective date will provide public sector entities
with sufficient time to implement the transition.

Question: Do you agree with the consequential amendments outlined in this Exposure Draft?

We agree with the consequential amendments arising from the proposed new financial presentation
standard.

We would be pleased to offer our assistance to the PSAB for any future proposed changes to PSAS.

MNP LLP is one of Canada’s largest chartered professional accountancy and business advisory firms. Our
clients include small to mid-size owner-managed business in agriculture, agribusiness, retail and
manufacturing as well as credit unions, co-operatives, Indigenous communities, medical and legal
professionals, not-for-profit organizations, municipalities and government entities. In addition, our client
base includes a sizeable contingent of publicly traded companies.

Page 19 of 288



Yours truly,

MNP LLP

Jody MacKenzie, CPA, CA
Director, Assurance Professional Standards
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Michael Puskaric, MBA, CPA, CMA
Director, Public Sector Accounting Board
277 Wellington Street West

Toronto, Ontario M5V 3H2

May 7, 2021
Dear Michael Puskaric,

RE: Letter of Support for MFOA’s Submission Exposure Draft — The Conceptual
Framework for Financial Reporting in the Public Sector and Exposure Draft — Financial
Statement Presentation, Proposed Section PS 1202

I am writing to provide comments in support of the Municipal Finance Officers’ Association of
Ontario’s submission to the Public Sector Accounting Board’'s (PSAB) Exposure Draft on the
Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting in the Public Sector and Exposure Draft for
Financial Statement Presentation, Proposed Section PS 1202.

As the Treasurer of Central Frontenac Township, | believe the updated conceptual framework
and accompanying financial statement presentation should be grounded in the principles of
promoting accountability, promoting transparency, and not adding complexity for the preparers
and users of financial statements. Public sector enterprises, in particular municipal
governments, understand the importance of financial reporting as an accountability measure to
the general public and other levels of government. However, as identified in MFOA’s submission
to PSAB, some of the proposed changes within the Exposure Drafts carry unintended
consequences of adding confusion and complexity for both preparers and users of financial
statements.

To successfully update the Conceptual Framework and Financial Statement Presentation, |
support MFOA’s recommendations:

1. Amend Chapter Two of the Conceptual Framework to clarify the goal of revising the
characteristics of public sector entities

2. Amend paragraph 2.69 to expand the definition of longevity as a characteristic of public
sector entities to provide more detail on what the term encompasses

3. Amend the definition of unique governance structure in paragraph 2.37 to make
reference to public sector entities’ unique interdependency on other levels of
government to fulfill their obligation to serve the public

4. Amend paragraphs 2.65-2.67 to provide clarification to non-exchange transactions, in
particular, within the context of the volume of non-exchange transactions

5. Amend paragraph 2.19(C) to remove the word “generally’ from the description of
taxation ‘

6. Further clarification is needed within the proposal for public sector entities to
communicate that it is not the intent of PSAB to alter the way in which municipal budgets
are currently prepared. Rather, it should be clearly stated that a secondary budget
summary or some other means of communication is recommended, clearly providing
information as required under O. Reg. 284/09 and any further information as may be
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11.

12.

13.

14.

deemed necessary, that transitions the traditional budget document such that it can be
presented on the same basis as the financial statements

Reconsideration of the timing of PS 1201 and PS 1202 and/or consider blending the two
reporting models to limit the number and frequency of changes that will be required
Amend paragraph 3.20 so labour force only includes recognition of value based on
current usage and payment for services

Amend paragraph 3.20(A) to explicitly state user fees as a way to raise public resources

. Amend paragraphs 7.08-7.11 to maintain the term “reliability” instead of “faithful

representation”

The terms “economic resources” and “economic obligations’ are not as intuitive as the
terms “assets” and “liabilities” for users of financial statements. More clarity should be
provided in the definitions under the Glossary

Amend paragraphs 9.37-9.40 to provide clarification on the concept of Going Concern to
add the potential for public sector entities to end through sale, amalgamation, etc.
Replace “accumulated surplus or deficit” with “accumulated results of operations” in PS
1202 in order to reduce inherent biases by users of financial statements

Amend paragraph .005 in PS 1202 to provide clarification on the differences between
financial and non-financial assets and liabilities

Please note that, within the municipal sector, the budget document is deemed to be the most
important financial document produced by municipalities. Coupled with regular financial
reporting, the budget document supersedes the value of the financial statements to municipal
councils in almost all circumstances. Public sector entities share the common goal of providing
accountability and transparency to the general public, but time, clarity, and resources are
required for meaningful work to be completed. Should you wish to follow up on this letter, please
contact me at treasury@centralfrontenac.com..

Sincerely,

PSS Y

cc. Donna Herridge, Municipal Finance Officers’ Association of Ontario (donna@mfoa.on.ca)
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Cou nty Of Sandra Zwiers

Director of Finance/Treasurer

\_‘f-\ ESS ex The Corporation of the County of Essex

May 5, 2021

Michael Puskaric, MBA, CPA, CMA
Director, Public Sector Accounting Board
277 Wellington Street West

Toronto, Ontario M5V 3H2

Dear Michael Puskaric,

Re: Letter of Support for MFOA’s Submission Exposure Draft — The Conceptual
Framework for Financial Reporting in the Public Sector and Exposure Draft —
Financial Statement Presentation, Proposed Section PS 1202

| am writing to provide comments in support of the Municipal Finance Officers’ Association of
Ontario’s submission to the Public Sector Accounting Board’s (PSAB) Exposure Draft on the
Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting in the Public Sector and Exposure Draft for Financial
Statement Presentation, Proposed Section PS 1202.

As the Director of Financial Services / Treasurer for the County of Essex, | believe the updated
conceptual framework and accompanying financial statement presentation should be grounded in the
principles of promoting accountability, promoting transparency, and not adding complexity for the
preparers and users of financial statements. Public sector enterprises, in particular municipal
governments, understand the importance of financial reporting as an accountability measure to the
general public and other levels of government. However, as identified in MFOA’s submission to
PSAB, some of the proposed changes within the Exposure Drafts carry unintended consequences of
adding confusion and complexity for both preparers and users of financial statements.

To successfully update the Conceptual Framework and Financial Statement Presentation, | support
MFOA’s recommendations:

1.  Amend Chapter Two of the Conceptual Framework to clarify the goal of revising the characteristics of
public sector entities

2. Amend paragraph 2.69 to expand the definition of longevity as a characteristic of public sector entities
to provide more detail on what the term encompasses

3. Amend the definition of unique governance structure in paragraph 2.37 to make reference to public
sector entities’ unique interdependency on other levels of government to fulfill their obligation to serve
the public

4. Amend paragraphs 2.65-2.67 to provide clarification to non-exchange transactions, in particular, within
the context of the volume of non-exchange transactions

5.  Amend paragraph 2.19(C) to remove the word “generally’ from the description of taxation

L. 519-776-6441 ext. 1312
TTY 1-877-624-4832

Q@ 360 Fairview Ave. W.
Suite # 202 Essex, ON N8M 1Y6
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6. Further clarification is needed within the proposal for public sector entities to communicate that it is not
the intent of PSAB to alter the way in which municipal budgets are currently prepared. Rather, it should
be clearly stated that a secondary budget summary or some other means of communication is
recommended, clearly providing information as required under O. Reg. 284/09 and any further
information as may be deemed necessary, that transitions the traditional budget document such that it
can be presented on the same basis as the financial statements

7. Reconsideration of the timing of PS 1201 and PS 1202 and/or consider blending the two reporting
models to limit the number and frequency of changes that will be required

8. Amend paragraph 3.20 so labour force only includes recognition of value based on current usage and
payment for services

9. Amend paragraph 3.20(A) to explicitly state user fees as a way to raise public resources

10. Amend paragraphs 7.08-7.11 to maintain the term “reliability” instead of “faithful representation”

11. The terms “economic resources” and “economic obligations’ are not as intuitive as the terms “assets”
and “liabilities” for users of financial statements. More clarity should be provided in the definitions under
the Glossary

12. Amend paragraphs 9.37-9.40 to provide clarification on the concept of Going Concern to add the
potential for public sector entities to end through sale, amalgamation, etc.

13. Replace “accumulated surplus or deficit” with “accumulated results of operations” in PS 1202 in order to
reduce inherent biases by users of financial statements

14. Amend paragraph .005 in PS 1202 to provide clarification on the differences between financial and non-
financial assets and liabilities

Please note that, within the municipal sector, the budget document is deemed to be the most
important financial document produced by municipalities. Coupled with regular financial reporting, the
budget document supersedes the value of the financial statements to municipal councils in almost all
circumstances. Public sector entities share the common goal of providing accountability and
transparency to the general public, but time, clarity, and resources are required for meaningful work
to be completed.

Should you require further information, please contact me by email at
szwiers@countyofessex.ca or by phone at extension 1312.

Regards,

Sandra Zwiers MAcc, CPA, CA
Director of Financial Services / Treasurer

Cc: Mike Galloway, CAO
Gary McNamara, Warden
Donna Herridge, Executive Director, MFOA

L. 519-776-6441 ext. 1312
TTY 1-877-624-4832

360 Fairview Ave. W.
Suite # 202 Essex, ON N8M 1Y6
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Winnipeg Corporate Ifln'ance
Finances générales
May 7, 2021

Mr. Michael Puskaric, CPA, CMA
Director, Public Sector Accounting
Public Sector Accounting Board
277 Wellington Street West
Toronto ON M5V 3H2

Dear Mr. Puskaric:

Re: Responses to Exposure Drafts

We are pleased to submit to the Public Sector Accounting Board responses of The City of
Winnipeg on the following Exposure Drafts:

e The Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting in the Public Sector (Appendix A)
o Financial Statement Presentation, Proposed Section PS 1202 (Appendix B)

The comments are based on consistency, comparability and ease of understanding for users of
financial statements. Exposure Drafts are an important part of the due diligence process in
establishing accounting standards and we welcome the opportunity to respond.

Sincerely,

S : /

Catherine Klqaﬁfgr, FCPA, CGA, FCA, ICD.D
Chief Finangial Officer

c. Michael Ruta, Interim Chief Administrative Officer
Paul Olafson, Corporate Controller

ATTACHMENTS

Office of the Chief Financial Officer

2" Floor, 510 Main St., Winnipeg, MB R3B 1B9 T.|Tél. : 204-986-6978
Bureau du chef des finances F. | Fax : 204-949-1174
2° étage, 510, rue Main, Winnipeg (Manitoba) R3B 1B9 winnipeg.ca
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Winnipeg Corporate Finance

Finances générales Appendix A — Conceptual Framework

City of Winnipeg Response

PSAB Exposure Draft — The Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting in the
Public Sector

Do you agree with the concepts in the proposed Conceptual Framework?
There are several sections where the City of Winnipeg is providing comments as noted below
by section number.

Paragraph 1.16

The main components of this Conceptual Framework include:
a) characteristics of public sector entities;
b) objective of financial reporting;
c) primary users of financial reporting;
d) expectations of those users;
e) role of financial statements;
f) financial statement foundations and objectives;
g) qualitative characteristics of information and related considerations;
h) definitions of elements;
i) general recognition and derecognition criteria;
j) general measurement concepts; and
k) general presentation concepts.

Components (a)-(d) are relevant to all financial reporting. Components (e)-(k) relate solely to the
reporting in financial statements.

Response:
It is not clear why the last two sentences are required. It would appear “reporting in financial

statements” is a subset of “all financial reporting” so therefore it would be logical to define what
“all financial reporting” means. Special purpose financial information is outside the scope of the
Conceptual Framework but is a form of financial reporting and therefore unless otherwise
defined, would be covered by paragraph 1.16. With this example, components (g) through (k)
would apply to financial reporting.

Unless that was the intent of this drafting, removal of these two sentences is recommended.
Paragraph 2.01
This chapter identifies the key characteristics of public sector entities that have financial

reporting implications. These characteristics fundamentally shape the objective of public sector
financial reporting.

Response:
Given the scope of the Conceptual Framework is limited to general purpose financial

statements, the references to financial reporting in this paragraph should be removed. This
recommendation is consistent with comments relating to paragraph 1.16.

For consistency throughout the Exposure Draft, it is recommended to either define “financial
reporting” or use “financial statements”.

Page 1 of 4
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Finances générales Appendix A — Conceptual Framework

City of Winnipeg Response
Paragraph 2.02
Identifying the characteristics of public sector entities, which include governments, government

components and government organizations, will result in concepts and standards that are
appropriate to the public sector.

Response:
As this is a Conceptual Framework the terms government, government components and

government organizations should be defined for clarity and consistency.

Figure 3.1

Figure 3.1

PUBLIC SECTOR ACCOUNTABILITY REPORTING

Other

Financial reporting accountability reporting

| | Examples: Reports on the

environment, sustainability,

performance management,

governance, stewardship,
risks, productivity,

| | societal well-being

Performance in

Financial condition Financial performance accordance with financial
authorities and plan

i b1

Reports outside of the
financial statements

Financial statements Examples: value for

maoney, financial statement
discussien and analysis

Response:
Figure 3.1 is a good depiction of what financial reporting means and sets the stage for this

Exposure Draft. Therefore, it would be clearer and more useful to include this conceptual
diagram in Chapter 1 (Introduction) of the Exposure Draft.

Paragraph 4.11

Financial statements prepared for accountability purposes help satisfy the needs of users who
have limited authority, ability or resources to obtain information, and for whom the statements
are an important source of information.

Response:
We recommend “statements” be “financial statements” to be consistent with the terminology

throughout the Exposure Draft.

Page 2 of 4

Page 27 of 288



©

/—-\ .
Winnipeg Corporate Finance

Finances générales Appendix A — Conceptual Framework

City of Winnipeg Response

Paragraph 5.05

Governments carry out their policies and serve the public through a variety of public sector
entities and through funding of other entities. Some public sector entities are components of
government, such as departments and ministries, and are integral to the operations of
government. Other public sector entities are separate entities with their own management, and
which have been delegated financial powers and operational authority, typically but not always
through legislation. The whole of government is a public sector entity and is a separate reporting
entity; it comprises all of a government’s components and organizations. (emphasis added)

Response:

For consistency and clarity, the term “separate entities” used above should be changed to
“‘government organizations” as this is the term used throughout the Exposure Draft.
Figure 6.1

Figure 6.1

ACCOUNTABILITY
OBJECTIVE

Performance in accordance
Financial condition Financial performance with financial authorities

and plan

Objective - Reporting Objective 3 Hepcn_‘.lng Objective 4: Enm.pa ring
financial position changes in financial actual financial T
po position performance to budget

L _ . Objective 5: Disclosing
Objective 6: Disclosing J ~ . . | J
risks and uncertainties non-compliance with

L financial authorities J

Objective 1: Determining
the scope of financial
statements

Response:

Objective 5, Disclosing non-compliance with financial authorities, also has implications to both
financial condition and/or financial performance. For example, non-compliance with terms and
conditions of funding agreements could result in significant liabilities accruing to the government
entity in receipt of the funding.

Page 3 of 4

Page 28 of 288



o
——'—'\ .
Winnipeg Corporate Finance

Finances générales Appendix A — Conceptual Framework

City of Winnipeg Response

Paragraph 6.06 regarding Objective 5 should include commentary regarding the potential
implication to the accountability objectives of financial condition and financial performance as
they are inextricably linked.

Paragraph 6.18

There are two categories of economic obligations: financial and non-financial.

Response:
We recommend an example of a non-financial obligation be included for additional guidance

and clarity. It is not clear how non-financial obligations link in to financial reporting because by
their nature they are not financial.

Paragraph 10.13

Recognition and reporting of items, transactions and other events on the face of the financial
statements, either individually or within totals, does not necessarily meet all the accountability
requirements. Notes and schedules are integral to the financial statements. They clarify and
explain items, transactions and other events recognized and reported on the face of the
financial statements. Notes and schedules present information that augments and supports fair
presentation of an entity’s financial position and periodic financial performance. (emphasis
added)

Response:
Some note disclosures are not necessarily intended to enhance what is recognized and

reported on the face of the financial statements. An example would be multi-employer pension
plan information disclosure where there is no asset/liability recognized.

We recommend that note and schedule disclosure not be limited to items recognized and
reported on the face of the financial statements and therefore this sentence could be modified
tor read “They clarify and explain items, transactions and other events.”

Paragraph BC 9.34 and BC 9.35

Many respondents to the Statement of Concepts encouraged PSAB to develop guidance in
relation to recognizing natural assets in financial statements.

PSAB will include this topic in its next project priority survey.

Response:
We recognize the present exclusion of these assets from financial statements significantly

understates the reported value of assets that are available to provide services to public-sector
entities. Natural assets deliver significant benefits to the residents, businesses and visitors to
our City. We also recognize the challenge to recognizing and measuring these assets.

We encourage and support PSAB to review this further.
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Finances générales Appendix B — Financial Statement Presentation
City of Winnipeg Response

PSAB Exposure Draft — Financial Statement Presentation, Proposed Section
PS 1202

1. Do you agree with the proposed new financial statement presentation standard?
There are several sections where the City of Winnipeg is providing comments as noted
below by paragraph number.

Paragraph 0.37

.037 (New) This Section requires minimum line items and subtotals to be presented on the
face of the statements. An entity should present additional line items, headings and
subtotals when such presentations are relevant to an understanding of the entity’s financial
position and change in financial position.

0.38 (New) When an entity presents additional subtotals in accordance with paragraph PS
1202.037, those subtotals should:

...d) not be displayed with more prominence than the subtotals and totals required by
standards in the PSA Handbook.

Response:
Item (d) of paragraph 0.38 contradicts the spirit and intent of paragraph 0.37. If an entity

adds additional disclosure beyond the minimum required, it would only be doing so for clarity
and to inform the readers of the financial statements. For example, on the Statement of
Operations, it is informative to taxpayers to add a sub-total to indicate the net results of
“operations” prior to indicating the net results of capital transactions (eg. government
transfers for investment in tangible capital assets).

Paragraph 0.84

.084 (New) a non-financial liability is a liability that cannot be settled through the use of
financial assets but only through the use of non-financial assets or economic resources
excluded from recognition in paragraph PS 1202.071. A non-financial liability does not
represent a future financial resource requirement. No financial liabilities include but are not
limited to non-financial performance obligations.

Response:
It is counterintuitive to note non-financial liabilities on a financial statement. It is also not

practical to identify some non-financial liabilities of a government and not all such
performance obligations. These can be wide-ranging and this new disclosure will create a
dichotomy of disclosure practices across the country which then negates the ability for
comparison and consistency.
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Finances générales Appendix B — Financial Statement Presentation
City of Winnipeg Response

Paragraph 0.94

.094 (New) Information is provided on the statement of financial position identifying the
components that make up the net assets or net liabilities of the entity. The components of
net assets or net liabilities to be presented on the statement of financial position are only
those identified by PSAB. The identification of these components, and the reporting of the
balance in each component, links the net financial position indicator to the statement of
changes in net assets or net liabilities.

Response:
(Please read this in conjunction with our response to paragraph .100) In order for the

Statement of Financial Position to be meaningful and understandable, we do not agree that
the balances of each component be added to that statement, but rather remain in the notes
to the financial statements.

Paragraph .100

.100 (New) The statement of net financial assets or net financial liabilities should report the
net financial assets or the net financial liabilities indicator of financial position.

Response:
Further to our response to paragraph .094, including this same disclosure on the Statement

of Financial Position is of greater importance than a separate financial statement. A
government’s net financial assets (liabilities) position is a primary indicator of the
government’s financial position. It allows readers to understand the financial strength of the
government and is a potential indicator of future policies and budgets to address any
challenges. The existing reporting structure is advantageous because it highlights this on
the Statement of Financial Position.

The calculation to determine the net financial assets (liabilities) position is straightforward
and does not require a separate financial statement to disclose this information.

The addition of another financial statement will be confusing to readers and does not allow
consistency with other standards of financial statement presentation used in the capital
markets.

We recommend that the components of net financial assets or net financial liabilities be
disclosed on the Statement of Financial Position.

Paragraph .176

.176 (New) If an entity enters into financing activities, the statement of cash flow should
account for the net cash available to be used for financing activities or the net cash needed
to be generated by financing activities. This amount is determined by combining the opening
cash balance with the net cash flows provided from or required by all of the operating,
capital and investing activities of the entity.
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City of Winnipeg Response
Response:

All four activity classifications have equal importance when explaining changes to the
entity’s cash and cash equivalents.

Financing activities for many municipalities are limited to capital related transactions. These
local governments do not issue debt to fund operating or investing activities. The
recommendations contained in this section implies that this is not the case.

Information about an entity’s fiscal sustainability is adequately addressed with disclosure of
the entity’s net financial assets (liabilities) position.

The proposed restructuring of this financial statement is not consistent with other financial
reporting standards used in the capital markets and will potentially cause confusion amongst
readers.

We recommend that there not be disclosure of total cash flows from operating, capital and
investing activities before financing activities.

Paragraph .189

.189 (New) If an entity chooses not to report the change in net financial assets or net
financial liabilities, it then should disclose in the notes a comparison of the total actual
capital expenditures incurred in the period with those originally budgeted. The budgeted
capital expenditures disclosed should follow the same accounting principles, be for the
same scope of activities and use the same classifications as the actual capital expenditure
amounts disclosed.

Response:
Clarification on this point would be advisable. Organizations should have the flexibility to

disclose the budgeted capital expenditures on any one of: a) financial statements; b) notes;
or c) schedules. This will permit preparers to disclose the information in a manner most
applicable to their financial statement users.

Appendix A: lllustrative Financial Statements — Senior Governments
(and 0.79 (h))

‘Transfers to acquire tangible capital assets’is included as a Financial Liability on the
Statement of Net Financial Position with the following explanation related to GOVERNMENT
TRANSFERS, Section 3410:

“If an entity determines that a capital transfer received is a liability until the related asset is
used to provide services, then the initial liability is a financial liability. That financial liability
then becomes a non-financial liability as the asset is constructed or purchased. Revenue
recognition would occur as the related asset is used to provide services.”

Alternatively, the same amount is not shown on Appendix B lllustrative Financial Statements
— Local Governments.
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Winni ]‘\C Corporate Finance
P8 | Finances générales Appendix B — Financial Statement Presentation
City of Winnipeg Response
Response:

Footnote 16 of the Exposure Draft notes “the Introduction to public sector accounting
standards specifies that concepts and standards apply to all public sector entities, not only
governments, unless otherwise directed or permitted to adopt other concepts and standards.
Editorial changes to the various Sections in the PSA Handbook resulting from the changes
in the Introduction to public sector accounting standards have yet to be completed. For
example, Section PS3410 applies to transfer received from or provided by a government or
any other public sector entity. Section PS 3410 needs to be updated to reflect this”.

When PS 3410 is updated, the principles of consistency must be applied. There should be
comparability of accounting treatment for the same type of government transfers. If a senior
government receives a transfer from another government, the accounting treatment must be
consistent with how a local government would account for the same type of capital transfer.
The example used in Appendix A is more akin to not-for-profit accounting and is a departure
from the revenue recognition principles in use at the local government level. This smoothing
of income being used in the Senior Government example does not provide a realistic picture
of the receipt of government transfers.

2. Do you agree with the effective date of April 1, 2024, to implement the financial
statement presentation standard, Section PS 12027
Yes, this provides a good balance to the value of implementing these accounting
recommendations as soon as possible with adequate time to consider the implications of the
new recommendations, including system changes.

Page 4 of 4

Page 33 of 288



Pyl

BRITISH
COLUMBIA

May 12, 2021
481313

Michael Puskaric, MBA, CPA, CMA
Director, Public Sector Accounting
Public Sector Accounting Board
277 Wellington Street West
Toronto, ON M5V 3H2
mpuskaric@psabcanada.ca

RE: PSAB Exposure Draft: PS 1202 Financial Statement Presentation

Thank you for the opportunity to provide comments on the Exposure Draft titled,
“Financial Statement Presentation Section PS 1202”. The views expressed in this letter
reflect the views of the Government of the Province of British Columbia (BC), including
central agencies, ministries and entities consolidated into the British Columbia Summary
Financial Statements. The Summary Financial Statements of the Province are prepared in
accordance with Canadian Public Sector Accounting Board (PSAB) standards.

Noted improvements in the Exposure Draft

The exposure draft includes the component of Non-Financial Liabilities that will be helpful
to users in understanding the economic substance of restricted government transfers used
for capital financing. PSAB has noted that a liability exists when government is required by
the stipulations of a transfer agreement, its public communications and actions and the
substance of the transfer agreement to use the transfer for delivery of services over
subsequent fiscal periods. The proposed accounting treatment will provide enhanced
accountability and transparency of these transactions.

Maintaining the title “Statement of Operations” will retain focus on an entity’s operations.
Governments exist to provide services and programs for the public, the term “Statement of
Operations” is a complete description for government revenue and expense reporting as an
accountability measure of these services and programs delivery.

sl
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Presenting budget amounts using the same basis as actuals is a key accountability measure
for entities. Requiring entities to provide a reconciliation in their notes where budgets are
prepared on a different basis than actuals will provide transparency of financial
information especially for municipalities as they prepare their budgets on a mill rate
system.

We are encouraged to see that PSAB has continued with presenting cash required for
financing as an isolated line item on the Statement of Cash Flows. This indication of a
government’s sustainability is useful for financial statement users.

We agree with the revised calculation of net debt through a Statement of Net Financial
Assets (Liabilities). The treatment of items such as Endowments as being excluded from
this calculation is appropriate as standards are yet to be developed. There needs to be an
emphasis on treating items such as these appropriately when standards are developed.

Concerns with Proposed Changes

One of PSAB’s proposed objectives of the new revised reporting model is to increase user
understandability. The public has come to expect the two-bottom line approach since it
was first introduced. Although initially users may have found it visually complex, when
complete financial information is presented on one statement, the reader is able to
understand the entire financial picture of the entity with more clarity. We continue to ask
PSAB to consider that when financial information is presented over multiple statements
and schedules, users must retain the information presented on each statement to make the
necessary links to confirm the financial position and performance of the entity. The
objective of understandability as proposed by PSAB cannot be enhanced without resolving
this fundamental difference.

We agree that the proposal of the “Accumulated Other” component of net assets or net
liabilities is forward-thinking and would allow the framework to evolve as current
technical issues are raised. However, without defining “Accumulated Other”, ambiguity
exists on what it represents, how it is measured and when it is recognized. Including this
component in the illustrative examples without first defining the practice is also
misleading. It is imperative to ensure there is a comprehensive rationale supporting the
items to be recognized within the proposed “Accumulated Other”. The introduction of this
component is challenging because Governments will have to rely on PSAB for definition
and it is difficult to provide meaningful feedback without additional information.

sl D
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Should PSAB have any comments or questions, please contact me at: 250 387 6692 or via e-
mail: Carl.Fischer@gov.bc.ca, or Diane Lianga, Executive Director, Financial Reporting and
Advisory Services Branch, at 778 698-5428 or by e-mail: Diane.Lianga@gov.bc.ca.

On behalf of the Government of British Columbia,

Sincerely,

Carl Fischer, CPA, CGA
Comptroller General
Province of British Columbia

Encl.
o Michael Pickup, FCPA, FCA

Auditor General
Province of British Columbia

Diane Lianga, Executive Director
Financial Reporting and Advisory Services
Office of the Comptroller General
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Michael Puskaric, MBA, CPA, CMA
mpuskaric@psabcanada.ca

Director, Public Sector Accounting Board
277 Wellington Street West

Toronto, Ontario M5V 3H2

16 May 2021
Dear Michael,

RE: Letter of Support for MFOA’s Submission Exposure Draft — The Conceptual Framework
for Financial Reporting in the Public Sector and Exposure Draft — Financial Statement
Presentation, Proposed Section PS 1202

| am writing to provide comments in support of the Municipal Finance Officers’ Association of
Ontario’s submission to the Public Sector Accounting Board’s (PSAB) Exposure Draft on the
Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting in the Public Sector and Exposure Draft for Financial
Statement Presentation, Proposed Section PS 1202.

As the Chief Administrative Officer and Treasurer for the Town of Petrolia, | believe the updated
conceptual framework and accompanying financial statement presentation should be grounded in the
principles of promoting accountability, promoting transparency, and not adding complexity for the
preparers and users of financial statements. Public sector enterprises, in particular municipal
governments, understand the importance of financial reporting as an accountability measure to the
general public and other levels of government. However, as identified in MFOA'’s submission to
PSAB, some of the proposed changes within the Exposure Drafts carry unintended consequences of
adding confusion and complexity for both preparers and users of financial statements.

To successfully update the Conceptual Framework and Financial Statement Presentation, | support
MFOA'’s recommendations:

1. Amend Chapter Two of the Conceptual Framework to clarify the goal of revising the
characteristics of public sector entities.

2. Amend paragraph 2.69 to expand the definition of longevity as a characteristic of public sector
entities to provide more detail on what the term encompasses.

3. Amend the definition of unique governance structure in paragraph 2.37 to make reference to
public sector entities’ unique interdependency on other levels of government to fulfill their
obligation to serve the public.

4. Amend paragraphs 2.65-2.67 to provide clarification to non-exchange transactions, in

particular, within the context of the volume of non-exchange transactions.

Amend paragraph 2.19(C) to remove the word “generally’ from the description of taxation.

Further clarification is needed within the proposal for public sector entities to communicate that

it is not the intent of PSAB to alter the way in which municipal budgets are currently prepared.

oo
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Rather, it should be clearly stated that a secondary budget summary or some other means of
communication is recommended, clearly providing information as required under O. Reg.
284/09 and any further information as may be deemed necessary, that transitions the
traditional budget document such that it can be presented on the same basis as the financial
statements.

7. Reconsideration of the timing of PS 1201 and PS 1202 and/or consider blending the two
reporting models to limit the number and frequency of changes that will be required

8. Amend paragraph 3.20 so labour force only includes recognition of value based on current
usage and payment for services.

9. Amend paragraph 3.20(A) to explicitly state user fees as a way to raise public resources

10.Amend paragraphs 7.08-7.11 to maintain the term “reliability” instead of “faithful
representation”.

11.The terms “economic resources” and “economic obligations’ are not as intuitive as the terms
“assets” and “liabilities” for users of financial statements. More clarity should be provided in the
definitions under the Glossary.

12. Amend paragraphs 9.37-9.40 to provide clarification on the concept of Going Concern to add
the potential for public sector entities to end through sale, amalgamation, etc.

13.Replace “accumulated surplus or deficit” with “accumulated results of operations” in PS 1202
in order to reduce inherent biases by users of financial statements.

14. Amend paragraph .005 in PS 1202 to provide clarification on the differences between financial
and non-financial assets and liabilities.

Please note that, within the municipal sector, the budget document is deemed to be the most
important financial document produced by municipalities. Coupled with regular financial
reporting, the budget document supersedes the value of the financial statements to municipal
councils in almost all circumstances. Public sector entities share the common goal of providing
accountability and transparency to the general public, but time, clarity, and resources are required for
meaningful work to be completed. Should you wish to follow up on this letter, please contact me at
rcharlebois@petrolia.ca or telephone at 519-882-2350.

Sincerely,
Original Signed by the undersigned

Rick Charlebois, MBA, CPA, CMA

cc. Donna Herridge, Municipal Finance Officers’ Association of Ontario (donna@mfoa.on.ca)
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CO FO Colleges Ontario Finance Officers

May 12, 2021

Michael Puskaric, CPA, CMA
Director, Public Sector Accounting
Public Sector Accounting Board
277 Wellington Street West
Toronto, Ontario M5V 3H2
info@psabcanada.ca

Re: Conceptual Framework and Financial Statement Presentation Exposure Drafts

Dear Mr. Puskaric,

We have read the above-mentioned Exposure Drafts that were issued in January 2021 and are pleased to
have the opportunity to provide remarks.

Please find our comments on the exposure drafts attached following this letter. This response was
prepared by the Colleges Ontario Finance Officers (COFO) organization in conjunction with Administrative
Services Coordinating Committee (ASCC), on behalf of the 24 Colleges of Applied Arts and Technology in
Ontario.

Thank you for your consideration of our response.

Yours sincerely,

Kelly Morrow, CPA, CA (on behalf of COFO)

Chair of Financial Reporting Subcommittee, Colleges Ontario Financial Officers
Director, Financial Services

The Humber College Institute of Technology and Advanced Learning
kelly.morrow@humber.ca

416-675-5093
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Colleges Ontario Financial Officers — Financial Reporting Subcommittee

RESPONSE TO CONCEPTUAL FRAMEWORK AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT
PRESENTATION EXPOSURE DRAFTS

Comments on The Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting in the Public Sector

Characteristics of Public Sector Entities:

The Ontario College Sector acknowledges that the Board has indicated that public sector entities vary, and
that not all government components or organizations may share all of the characteristics of a public sector
entity. In Ontario however, Universities and likely any organization that receives government funding
would also meet some of these characteristics, meaning these characteristics are not solely applicable to
government, government components or government organizations, but also widely applicable to other
organizations such as not-for-profit organizations that are not controlled by government (and therefore
not a government not-for-profit organization) and may rely upon government funding to fulfil their
purpose. These other organizations that receive government funding are subject to similar inherent
accountability but are not required to follow Public Sector Accounting. The key difference between
government not-for-profit organizations (“GNFPQ’s”), and other not-for-profit organizations is the
concept of control, and the government reporting entity.

Concept of Control:
As described in the Sector’s response to the Statement of Concepts on a Revised Conceptual Framework,

The Sector believes that there continues to be an inconsistency regarding the concept of control as
described in Chapter 5 and the concept of control as described in PS 1300.09.

Section 5.22 of the exposure draft states: “The power or right (constitutional, devolved, delegated or
inherent) to take control of an entity away from others may currently exist. However, until such a power
or right is invoked, control of that other entity by the reporting entity would not be considered to exist
for financial statement purposes.

PS 1300.09 states: “A government may choose not to exercise its power; nevertheless, control exists by

virtue of the government’s ability to do so”.

These two statements appear to contradict each other, and the Sector requests that the Board clarify the
concept of control in the Conceptual Framework or in PS 1300 — Government Reporting Entity. Under the
new Conceptual Framework, it would appear that Ontario Colleges would not meet the definition of
control, however the definition of a GNFPO turns to PS 1300 to explain control.

Comparing Actual Financial Performance to That Budgeted:

2
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The Ontario College Sector continues to disagree with the concept the GNFPQO’s should present budgets
within its general purpose financial statements. Any organization that receives government funding has
inherent public accountability with respect to the funding received, however this accountability is related
to outcomes, not budget to actual comparison. Budget to actual comparison is necessary for government
entities that have the power to levy tax revenue, since budgets typically drive tax rates and levies.

Elements of Financial Statements:

As previously stated in the Sector’s Statement of Concepts response, the definitions of financial
statements elements in the revised conceptual framework fails to address appropriate treatment of
capital contributions and endowment contributions. The Sector believes that these types of contributions
need to be exceptions to the overarching definitions and should be addressed in specific sections that
would override the primary definition.

The Sector refers the Board to our previous response at the Statement of Concepts phase for additional
details on these items.

Comments on Financial Statement Presentation, Proposed Section PS 1202

While PS 1202 does not apply to those entities applying PS 4200 series and the reporting model contained
therein, the Sector is providing comments since the Board’s GNFPO strategy has not yet been determined.

Statement of changes in net assets or net liabilities:
PS 1202.094 and .095 only allow for components of net assets or net liabilities identified by PSAB to be
presented on the statement of financial position. While PS 1202.098 allows for the disclosure of a more

detailed breakdown of the net assets or net liabilities components established by PSAB in the notes, the
Sector believes that presenting “accumulated invested in capital assets” is such an integral component of
net assets or net liabilities that it should be required to be presented on the face of the statement of
financial position and not within the notes. These net assets are not available for other purposes since
they are invested in capital assets, and would only become available if they were sold, which would then
decrease the service capacity of an organization. Financial statement users should be made aware of this
important distinction and restriction since these net assets are not readily available for use by an
organization.

Accumulated externally restricted funds is another component of net assets or net liabilities that
encompasses restricted funds not available for use at the organization’s discretion. It is important that
financial statement users be made aware of these amounts in the accumulated net asset or net liability
balance since they are not available for use by an organization. Recently, the financial concerns around
Laurentian University (while the organization does not follow PSAS) serve as an example as to why the
distinction and categorization of net assets or net liabilities is so critical that components such as
“accumulated invested in capital assets” and “accumulated externally restricted” should be presented on
the statement of financial position and not in the notes.

3
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Comparing actual capital expenditures to that budgeted:

Although optional, the Ontario College Sector believes that the detailed presentation of the changes in
net financial assets or net financial liabilities is important and useful information for financial statements
users. The proposed presentation of change in net financial asset or net financial liabilities is similar to
the Statement of Net Assets currently used by GNFPO’s under the PS 4200 series. The Sector however
does not agree with the requirement to present a comparison of the items that comprise the change in
net financial assets or net financial liabilities figures originally budgeted.

Capital projects are typically approved by the College Boards on a project by project basis, which does not
lend itself to fiscal period budget allocations. Large capital projects, such as those associated with the
construction of buildings, are sensitive to changes in planned spending beyond a College’s control such as
weather impacts or resource delays. Presenting capital project spending as fiscal period budget allocations
does not increase accountability in this area, would require additional budgeting provisions and approvals
at the Board level each year despite having overall project budgets approved.

GNFPO Strategy:

The Sector recognizes that the Board is developing its GNFPO strategy, and that comments made within
this response may eventually be addressed as part of that strategy.

4
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The Corporation of the Township of Bonnechere Valley

Phone (613) 628-3101
Fax (613) 628-1336

49 Bonnechere Street East
P.O. Box 100
Eganville, Ontario KOJ 1T0

May 18, 2021
BY EMAIL mpuskaric@psabcanada.ca

Michael Puskaric, MBA, CPA, CMA
Director, Public Sector Accounting Board
277 Wellington Street West

Toronto, Ontario M5V 3H2

Dear Michael Puskaric,

RE: Letter of Support for MFOA’s Submission Exposure Draft — The Conceptual
Framework for Financial Reporting in the Public Sector and Exposure Draft — Financial
Statement Presentation, Proposed Section PS 1202

| am writing to provide comments in support of the Municipal Finance Officers’ Association of
Ontario’s submission to the Public Sector Accounting Board’s (PSAB) Exposure Draft on the
Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting in the Public Sector and Exposure Draft for
Financial Statement Presentation, Proposed Section PS 1202.

As the CAO/Clerk/Treasurer | believe the updated conceptual framework and accompanying
financial statement presentation should be grounded in the principles of promoting
accountability, promoting transparency, and not adding complexity for the preparers and users
of financial statements. Public sector enterprises, in particular municipal governments,
understand the importance of financial reporting as an accountability measure to the general
public and other levels of government. However, as identified in MFOA’s submission to PSAB,
some of the proposed changes within the Exposure Drafts carry unintended consequences of
adding confusion and complexity for both preparers and users of financial statements.

To successfully update the Conceptual Framework and Financial Statement Presentation, |
support MFOA'’s recommendations:

1.  Amend Chapter Two of the Conceptual Framework to clarify the goal of revising the
characteristics of public sector entities

2. Amend paragraph 2.69 to expand the definition of longevity as a characteristic of public
sector entities to provide more detail on what the term encompasses

3. Amend the definition of unique governance structure in paragraph 2.37 to make
reference to public sector entities’ unique interdependency on other levels of
government to fulfill their obligation to serve the public

4. Amend paragraphs 2.65-2.67 to provide clarification to non-exchange transactions, in
particular, within the context of the volume of non-exchange transactions

5. Amend paragraph 2.19(C) to remove the word “generally’ from the description of
taxation
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6. Further clarification is needed within the proposal for public sector entities to
communicate that it is not the intent of PSAB to alter the way in which municipal budgets
are currently prepared. Rather, it should be clearly stated that a secondary budget
summary or some other means of communication is recommended, clearly providing
information as required under O. Reg. 284/09 and any further information as may be
deemed necessary, that transitions the traditional budget document such that it can be
presented on the same basis as the financial statements

7. Reconsideration of the timing of PS 1201 and PS 1202 and/or consider blending the two
reporting models to limit the number and frequency of changes that will be required

8. Amend paragraph 3.20 so labour force only includes recognition of value based on
current usage and payment for services

9. Amend paragraph 3.20(A) to explicitly state user fees as a way to raise public resources

10. Amend paragraphs 7.08-7.11 to maintain the term “reliability” instead of “faithful
representation”

11. The terms “economic resources” and “economic obligations’ are not as intuitive as the
terms “assets” and “liabilities” for users of financial statements. More clarity should be
provided in the definitions under the Glossary

12. Amend paragraphs 9.37-9.40 to provide clarification on the concept of Going Concern to
add the potential for public sector entities to end through sale, amalgamation, etc.

13. Replace “accumulated surplus or deficit” with “accumulated results of operations” in PS
1202 in order to reduce inherent biases by users of financial statements

14. Amend paragraph .005 in PS 1202 to provide clarification on the differences between
financial and non-financial assets and liabilities

Please note that, within the municipal sector, the budget document is deemed to be the most
important financial document produced by municipalities. Coupled with regular financial
reporting, the budget document supersedes the value of the financial statements to municipal
councils in almost all circumstances. Public sector entities share the common goal of providing
accountability and transparency to the general public, but time, clarity, and resources are
required for meaningful work to be completed.

Sincerely,
Onnelle %W

Annette Gilchrist, CAO
Township of Bonnechere Valley

cc. Donna Herridge, Municipal Finance Officers’ Association of Ontario
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Michael Puskaric, MBA, CPA, CMA
Director, Public Sector Accounting Board
277 Wellington Street West
Toronto, Ontario M5V 3H2
May 26, 2021

Dear Michael Puskairic,

RE: Letter of Support for MFOA’s Submission Exposure Draft — The Conceptual
Framework for Financial Reporting in the Public Sector and Exposure Draft — Financial
Statement Presentation, Proposed Section PS 1202

| am writing to provide comments in support of the Municipal Finance Officers’ Association of
Ontario’s submission to the Public Sector Accounting Board’s (PSAB) Exposure Draft on the
Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting in the Public Sector and Exposure Draft for
Financial Statement Presentation, Proposed Section PS 1202.

As the Director of Finance-Treasurer of the Municipality of Strathroy-Caradoc, | believe the
updated conceptual framework and accompanying financial statement presentation should be
grounded in the principles of promoting accountability, promoting transparency, and not adding
complexity for the preparers and users of financial statements. Public sector enterprises, in
particular municipal governments, understand the importance of financial reporting as an
accountability measure to the general public and other levels of government. However, as
identified in MFOA’s submission to PSAB, some of the proposed changes within the Exposure
Drafts carry unintended consequences of adding confusion and complexity for both preparers
and users of financial statements.

To successfully update the Conceptual Framework and Financial Statement Presentation, |
support MFOA'’s recommendations:

1. Amend Chapter Two of the Conceptual Framework to clarify the goal of revising the
characteristics of public sector entities

2. Amend paragraph 2.69 to expand the definition of longevity as a characteristic of public
sector entities to provide more detail on what the term encompasses

3. Amend the definition of unique governance structure in paragraph 2.37 to make
reference to public sector entities’ unique interdependency on other levels of
government to fulfill their obligation to serve the public

4. Amend paragraphs 2.65-2.67 to provide clarification to non-exchange transactions, in
particular, within the context of the volume of non-exchange transactions

5. Amend paragraph 2.19(C) to remove the word “generally’ from the description of
taxation

6. Further clarification is needed within the proposal for public sector entities to
communicate that it is not the intent of PSAB to alter the way in which municipal budgets
are currently prepared. Rather, it should be clearly stated that a secondary budget
summary or some other means of communication is recommended, clearly providing
information as required under O. Reg. 284/09 and any further information as may be
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12.

13.

14.

deemed necessary, that transitions the traditional budget document such that it can be
presented on the same basis as the financial statements

Reconsideration of the timing of PS 1201 and PS 1202 and/or consider blending the two
reporting models to limit the number and frequency of changes that will be required
Amend paragraph 3.20 so labour force only includes recognition of value based on
current usage and payment for services

Amend paragraph 3.20(A) to explicitly state user fees as a way to raise public resources

. Amend paragraphs 7.08-7.11 to maintain the term “reliability” instead of “faithful

representation”

The terms “economic resources” and “economic obligations’ are not as intuitive as the
terms “assets” and “liabilities” for users of financial statements. More clarity should be
provided in the definitions under the Glossary

Amend paragraphs 9.37-9.40 to provide clarification on the concept of Going Concern to
add the potential for public sector entities to end through sale, amalgamation, etc.
Replace “accumulated surplus or deficit” with “accumulated results of operations” in PS
1202 in order to reduce inherent biases by users of financial statements

Amend paragraph .005 in PS 1202 to provide clarification on the differences between
financial and non-financial assets and liabilities

Please note that, within the municipal sector, the budget document is deemed to be the most
important financial document produced by municipalities. Coupled with regular financial
reporting, the budget document supersedes the value of the financial statements to municipal
councils in almost all circumstances. Public sector entities share the common goal of providing
accountability and transparency to the general public, but time, clarity, and resources are
required for meaningful work to be completed. Should you wish to follow up on this letter, please
contact William Dakin, bdakin@strathroy-caradoc.ca

Sincerely,

cc. Donna Herridge, Municipal Finance Officers’ Association of Ontario (donna@mfoa.on.ca)

Page 46 of 288


mailto:bdakin@strathroy-caradoc.ca
mailto:done@mfoa.on.ca

Michael Puskaric, MBA, CPA, CMA
Director, Public Sector Accounting Board
277 Wellington Street West
Toronto, Ontario M5V 3H2
May 19, 2021

Dear Michael Puskaric,

RE: Letter of Support for MFOA’s Submission Exposure Draft - The Conceptual
Framework for Financial Reporting in the Public Se ctor and Exposure Draft — Financial
State ment Presentation, Proposed Section PS 1202

| am writing to provide comments in support of the Municipal Finance Officers’ Association of
Ontario’s submission to the Public Sector Accounting Board’s (PSAB) Exposure Draft on the
Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting in the Public Sector and Exposure Draft for
Financial Statement Presentation, Proposed Section PS 1202.

As the Director of Corporate Services/Treasurer of the Municipality of Middlesex Centre, |
believe the updated conceptual framework and accompanying financial statement presentation
should be grounded in the principles of promoting accountability, promoting transparency, and
not adding complexity for the preparers and users of financial statements. Public sector
enterprises, in particular municipal governments, understand the importance of financial
reporting as an accountability measure to the general public and other levels of government.
However, as identified in MFOA’s submission to PSAB, some of the proposed changes within
the Exposure Drafts carry unintended consequences of adding confusion and complexity for
both preparers and users of financial statements.

To successfully update the Conceptual Framework and Financial Statement Presentation, |
support MFOA’s recommendations:

1. Amend Chapter Two of the Conceptual Framework to clarify the goal of revising the
characteristics of public sector entities

2. Amend paragraph 2.69 to expand the definition of longevity as a characteristic of public
sector entities to provide more detail on what the term encompasses

3. Amend the definition of unique governance structure in paragraph 2.37 to make
reference to public sector entities’ unique interdependency on other levels of
government to fulfill their obligation to serve the public

4. Amend paragraphs 2.65-2.67 to provide clarification to non-exchange transactions, in
particular, within the context of the volume of non-exchange transactions

5. Amend paragraph 2.19(C) to remove the word “generally’ from the description of
taxation

6. Further clarification is needed within the proposal for public sector entities to
communicate that it is not the intent of PSAB to alter the way in which municipal budgets
are currently prepared. Rather, it should be clearly stated that a secondary budget
summary or some other means of communication is recommended, clearly providing
information as required under O. Reg. 284/09 and any further information as may be
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deemed necessary, that transitions the traditional budget document such that it can be
presented on the same basis as the financial statements

7. Reconsideration of the timing of PS 1201 and PS 1202 and/or consider blending the two
reporting models to limit the number and frequency of changes that will be required

8. Amend paragraph 3.20 so labour force only includes recognition of value based on
current usage and paymentfor services

9. Amend paragraph 3.20(A) to explicitly state user fees as a way to raise public resources

10. Amend paragraphs 7.08-7.11 to maintain the term “reliability” instead of “faithful
representation”

11. The terms “economic resources” and “economic obligations’ are not as intuitive as the
terms “assets” and “liabilities” for users of financial statements. More clarity should be
provided in the definitions under the Glossary

12. Amend paragraphs 9.37-9.40 to provide clarification on the concept of Going Concernto
add the potential for public sector entities to end through sale, amalgamation, etc.

13. Replace “accumulated surplus or deficit” with “accumulated results of operations” in PS
1202 in order to reduce inherent biases by users of financial statements

14. Amend paragraph .005 in PS 1202 to provide clarification on the differences between
financial and non-financial assets and liabilities

Please note that, within the municipal sector, the budget document is deemed to be the most
important financial document produced by municipalities. Coupled with regular financial
reporting, the budget document supersedes the value of the financial statements to municipal
councils in almost all circumstances. Public sector entities share the common goal of providing
accountability and transparency to the general public, but time, clarity, and resources are
required for meaningful work to be completed. Should you wish to follow up on this letter, please
contact Tiffany Farrell, farrell@middlesexcentre.on.ca

Sincerely,
Tebjany Famell

cc. Donna Herridge, Municipal Finance Officers’ Association of Ontario (donna@mfoa.on.ca)
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Antonella Risi

From: Connect.FRASCanada.ca <notifications@engagementhq.com>

Sent: Friday, June 11, 2021 12:35 PM

To: Antonella Risi; Martha Jones Denning

Subject: William Robson completed Your Feedback on the Proposed Conceptual Framework

This email originates from an external source. Do not click on links or
respond to emails from unfamiliar senders. Ce courriel provient d’'une
source externe. Si vous recevez un courriel d’'un expéditeur inconnu, n’y
répondez pas et ne cliquez pas sur les liens qui s’y trouvent.

William Robson just submitted the survey Your Feedback on the Proposed Conceptual Framework with the responses
below.

Do you agree with the concepts in the proposed Conceptual Framework as described in Exposure Draft, "The
Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting in the Public Sector"?

Yes

Please provide comments to explain your response above.

The proposed format for the financial statements strikes a reasonable balance between the requirement for budgets to
anticipate changes in net worth and for statements of operations to reconcile changes in the accumulated
surplus/deficit with changes in net worth. It is reassuring that paragraphs .142 and .144 in Proposed Section P$1202
restrict the items that can appear in Accumulated Remeasurement Gains and Losses and Accumulated Other - | trust
that these items will have permanent red flags attached to them by auditors. | mention this particularly because of
concerns about pressure for pension revaluations to disappear from statements of operations. | strongly support most
of the new material related to budgets and budget comparisons in Proposed Section PS1202 (pp. 33-36), and heartily
endorse paragraph .193 in particular. | and have some suggestions intended to reinforce what | took to be the
accountability-oriented thrust of this material: - | would add a section here that mirrors paragraph .020, such that
budgets presented on a non-PSAS basis should contain such a disclosure. - | would reconsider paragraph .201. The multi-
year capital budgets | am familiar with are not PSAS-consistent, so it would be good to avoid a statement that appears to
endorse current practice. Multi-year capital budgets should be presented in a way that is consistent with annual budgets
and statements of operations. - Perhaps an additional paragraph could address multi-year budgets in general. The key
requirement is for formal annual budgets - that would be worth stating explicitly. - Perhaps paragraph .090 is not the
best place for it, but | would favour a stronger statement about budget timing. Accountability for public funds requires
legislators to authorize an expense before it happens. So formal approval of budgets should occur before the beginning
of the fiscal year. | would welcome a statement to that effect. - For the same reason, although | understand the reasons
provided for using an amended or different budget in paragraphs .198-.201, | would be glad of any further limitations
the drafters can devise to guard against comparisons to budgets passed, say, more than half-way through the fiscal year.
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Do you agree with the proposed consequential amendments outlined in Exposure Draft, "Consequential Amendments
Arising from the Proposed Conceptual Framework?"

Yes

Please provide comments to explain your response above.

Please see comments in question 2.
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VG

/ Venhcateur général du Québec

Québec, le 14 juin 2021

Monsieur Michael Puskaric, CPA, CMA
Directeur Service comptabilité du secteur public
Conseil sur la comptabilité dans le secteur public
277, rue Wellington Ouest

Toronto (Ontario) M5V 3H2

Objet : Exposé-sondage — Projet de chapitre SP 1202, « Présentation des états financiers »

Monsieur le Directeur,

Nous vous remercions de nous donner I'opportunité de commenter I'exposé-sondage mentionné
ci-haut.

Vous trouverez ci-joint la réponse du Vérificateur général du Québec relativement a cet exposé-
sondage.

Veuillez agréer, Monsieur le Directeur, I'expression de nos sentiments les meilleurs.

La vérificatrice générale du Québec,

Guylaine Leclerc, FCPA auditrice, FCA

p.j. Réponse
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Réponses du Vérificateur général du Québec
Exposé-sondage « Projet de chapitre SP 1202, “Présentation des états financiers” »
Date limite de transmission : 30 juin 2021

» Appuyez-vous le projet de nouvelle norme sur la présentation des états financiers?
Réponse

Nous appuyons le projet de nouvelle norme sur la présentation des états financiers, a I'exception des
éléments discutés ci-dessous.

Image fidéle

Il est mentionné au paragraphe .020 que la législation peut obliger certaines entités a présenter des
informations qui ne sont pas conformes au cadre conceptuel et que dans ce cas, I'entité doit indiquer
clairement que ce n’est pas conforme. Une précision devrait étre ajoutée pour mentionner que c’est
acceptable uniquement lorsqu’il s’agit d’'informations en sus de celles exigées par les NCCSP et qu’elles
ne peuvent remplacer les informations exigées par celles-ci.

Caractére significatif

Il est mentionné au paragraphe .031 que I'entité n’est pas tenue de présenter une information exigée
par une norme si celle-ci est non significative. Il serait souhaitable d’ajouter une précision pour définir
ce qui est entendu par « non significative ». Antérieurement, le SP 1201.15 faisait référence au
jugement professionnel et a ce qui peut influer sur les évaluations et jugements des utilisateurs. Le
cadre conceptuel proposé explique le concept a la section 7.40 jusqu’a 7.44, mais il serait pertinent que
la précision soit également ajoutée dans le SP 1202.

Poste et sous-totaux (.037 et .038)

Le projet de chapitre SP 1202 permet I'ajout de sous-totaux supplémentaires selon certaines exigences
énoncées au paragraphe .038. Nous sommes d’avis que cela devrait étre davantage encadré et ne
devrait pas permettre une présentation distincte des éléments inhabituels ou extraordinaires. D’ailleurs,
le paragraphe .038 est identique a celui de IAS 1. 85A des IFRS, mais IAS 1.87 vient ensuite interdire
la présentation des éléments extraordinaires. Un paragraphe équivalent a IAS 1.87 devrait étre ajouté
au projet de SP 1202.

Notion d’actif financier et non financier (.060)

Bien que cette notion existait auparavant, nous nous questionnons sur la pertinence et la clarté des
précisions ajoutées. Au paragraphe .060 e) on mentionne que les actifs non financiers peuvent
comprendre « Les actifs qui ne pourraient pas servir au réglement d’'un passif financier ou étre
consacrés a des activités futures parce qu’ils sont grevés d’une affectation ». De notre point de vue,
cela devrait concerner uniquement les affectations externes.
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Réponses du Vérificateur général du Québec
Exposé-sondage « Projet de chapitre SP 1202, “Présentation des états financiers” »
Date limite de transmission : 30 juin 2021

Introduction du concept de passif non financier et distinction entre passif financier et non financier a
I'état de la situation financiére (0.73 a 0.93)

Nous sommes en accord pour retirer la présentation de la dette nette a méme I'état de la situation
financiére, ce qui aurait pour avantage de réduire I'écart de présentation avec les autres référentiels et
ainsi simplifier la compréhension pour les utilisateurs. Toutefois, I'introduction du concept de passif
financier vient, au contraire, complexifier la présentation, la rendre difficlement compréhensible et
creuser I'écart avec les autres référentiels.

Nous nous questionnons sur la pertinence, a méme ['état de la situation financieére, de séparer des
passifs en 2 catégories, telles que les PPP ou les revenus reportés découlant de paiement de transfert.
Il est plus important a notre avis que I'utilisateur ait un portrait de 'ampleur de chaque passif dans une
méme et unique ligne plutdét que de le séparer en 2 catégories, et cela, uniquement pour faciliter le
calcul d’un indicateur.

La complexité de ce nouveau concept se traduit également par un nombre trés élevé de notes de bas
de page : 12 notes de bas de page sont présentes dans cette section, plusieurs ayant une dizaine de
lignes. Cela démontre que la notion de passif non financier n’est pas suffisamment claire dans la norme
elle-méme. Nous ne sommes pas en mesure d’évaluer si ce concept répond a un besoin des
préparateurs et des utilisateurs des états financiers.

Définitions et modifications corrélatives du SP 1202

De plus, cela vient affecter la définition des actifs et passifs financiers telle que décrite dans le SP 3450
(Instruments financiers). L'introduction des actifs et passifs d’'instruments financiers portera grandement
a confusion et nous éloignera davantage des autres référentiels. Les concepts liés aux instruments
financiers, étant déja difficlement compréhensibles pour les utilisateurs, le fait de s’éloigner des
définitions reconnues n’est pas souhaitable a notre avis. Nous remarquons aussi les effets a ce sujet
dans les modifications corrélatives. A cet égard, cela complexifie aussi dans les modifications
corrélatives I'application de la norme sur les transferts SP 3410 puisqu’on doit changer au fil du temps
la comptabilisation initiale a titre de passif financier, lors de la réception du transfert en capital.
Ultérieurement, lors de l'acquisition et du développement ou de la mise en valeur de I'immobilisation
corporelle, cela devient un passif non financier. Nous ne voyons pas I'utilité de faire ces nuances et
changements de comptabilisation au fil du temps.

Notes de bas de page 18 et 23

Dans les notes de bas de page 18 et 23, on vient énoncer une prise de position sur la norme SP 3100
(Actifs et revenus affectés) qui ne figure pas dans le chapitre lui-méme. En effet, la note 18 mentionne
ceci : « Ce chapitre ne permet pas la comptabilisation des revenus sur la durée de vie utile de I'actif
correspondant, qui est seulement permise, dans le cas d’un transfert en capital, en vertu du chapitre
SP 3410 ».
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Réponses du Vérificateur général du Québec
Exposé-sondage « Projet de chapitre SP 1202, “Présentation des états financiers” »
Date limite de transmission : 30 juin 2021

Or, I'exigence dans la norme SP 3100 est plutét libellée ainsi :

SP 3100 .11 Les rentrées grevées d’affectations d’origine externe doivent étre constatées a titre de
revenus dans les états financiers du gouvernement dans I'exercice au cours duquel les ressources
sont utilisées aux fins prescrites. Les rentrées grevées d’affectations d’origine externe qui sont regues
avant I'exercice au cours duquel elles pourront étre utilisées aux fins prescrites doivent étre
présentées a titre de passifs jusqu’a ce que les ressources soient utilisées aux fins prescrites.

De plus, la comptabilisation des revenus sur la durée de vie utile de I'actif est permise uniquement
lorsque les exigences des paragraphes SP 3410.19 et 25 sont rencontrées et que les modalités
d’application des paragraphes .20 a .24, .26 et .27 ont été prises en considération.

A notre avis, il n’est pas approprié de prendre position dans une note de bas de page sur la
comptabilisation d’un élément non précisé dans la norme a laquelle on référe et encore moins dans
un chapitre portant uniguement sur la présentation aux états financiers. Cette mention devrait étre
supprimée des notes de bas de page et étre traitée ultérieurement dans un projet de mise a jour du
chapitre 3100.

Présentation de I'état de I'actif financier net ou passif financier net (dette nette) (.100 a .104)

La présentation de I'état de I'actif net ou passif net devrait étre obligatoire uniquement pour les
gouvernements seniors et optionnelle pour les autres types d’entités du secteur public. Cela éviterait
d’alourdir la présentation des états financiers lorsque les entités autres que les gouvernements seniors
ne considérent pas la présentation de cet indicateur comme étant pertinente pour les utilisateurs.

Le calcul révisé semble complexe, en particulier la distinction entre les passifs financiers et non
financiers. Si les gouvernements sont en accord avec ce calcul, nous suggérons que cette distinction
soit uniqguement présentée dans cet état et ne vienne pas affecter et complexifier inutilement la
présentation de I'état de la situation financiére.

Au paragraphe .102, on exige d’expliquer directement dans I'état de I'actif ou passif financier net la
signification de l'indicateur. Nous sommes en désaccord avec le principe d’ajouter des notes a la face
méme d’un état. Cela ne respecte pas, a notre avis, la nature synthétique que devrait avoir chacun des
états et ouvre la porte a ce qu’autres types de notes soient ajoutées directement a la face de ceux-ci.
Les notes devraient toutes étre incluses au méme endroit, soit dans les notes complémentaires. Nous
avons la méme préoccupation concernant I'exigence a .196 concernant I'explication de la raison pour
laquelle la comparaison entre les montants réels et budgétés n’a pu étre effectuée.

Capital-actions (.146 a .150)

Le projet de norme vient introduire une notion qui n’est pas présente dans les NCCSP actuellement,
celle de capital-actions. Nous sommes en accord avec cette notion a condition que ce soit clairement
indiqué que cela ne concerne que le capital-actions émis, afin d’éviter que des éléments ressemblant
a un surplus d’apport, soient comptabilisés directement a I'état de I'actif ou passif net. A titre d’exemple,
concernant l'aide gouvernementale, il n’est plus permis d’étre comptabilisé a titre de surplus d’apport
depuis le retrait du SP 3800 « Aide gouvernementale » en juin 2010. Cette position devrait étre
maintenue dans le nouveau modéle pour ne pas créer de nouveaux enjeux.
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Réponses du Vérificateur général du Québec
Exposé-sondage « Projet de chapitre SP 1202, “Présentation des états financiers” »
Date limite de transmission : 30 juin 2021

Cette mention de capital-actions émis est effectivement présente dans les paragraphes .146 a .150.
Nous suggérons toutefois que le terme « émis » soit ajouté au sous-titre de la section afin d’éviter toute
confusion.

Utilisation d’'un budget modifié (.198)

Nous sommes en désaccord avec une partie du paragraphe .198 b) qui permet a un organisme public
de présenter un budget modifié. Nous comprenons que cela est pertinent pour un nouveau
gouvernement élu, mais nous nous questionnons sur la pertinence dans le cas d’un nouveau conseil
d’administration (CA) d’un organisme public dont les membres sont nommés. Méme si les membres
du CA changent, cela ne veut pas dire que les activités de I'organisme vont changer. Celles-ci étant
encadrées par des lois et reglements, contrairement a un nouveau gouvernement qui peut annuler,
modifier ou instaurer de nouvelles mesures, lois ou réglement. Par conséquent, nous sommes d’avis
que l'exception permise au paragraphe b) devrait étre supprimée.

Exemples d’état financiers

Ily a 5 exemples d’états financiers selon les secteurs, mais ils sont presque tous identiques, a quelques
détails prés. Nous nous questionnons sur la pertinence d’en avoir autant s’il y a peu de distinctions
entre chacun des exemples. Nous suggérons soit d’en retirer ou démarquer de fagon plus importante
les exemples les uns des autres en ajoutant plus d’éléments qui sont propres a chaque secteur. Il
pourrait également étre intéressant d’avoir un exemple pour les « autres organismes » qui sont
importants en termes de nombre d’entités et souvent assez différents des autres secteurs.

Commentaires généraux

Crochets au début des paragraphes

Nous tenons a souligner que la présentation proposée de I'exposé-sondage, avec les crochets au début
de chaque paragraphe pour indiquer ce qui est repris des chapitres SP 1000 et SP 1201 ou ce qui est
nouveau est une excellente pratique. Il serait grandement apprécié que le CCSP procéde de cette fagon
pour d’autres exposés-sondages, car ¢a facilite grandement la lecture et I'évaluation générale des
changements apportés.

Références au cadre conceptuel

A plusieurs endroits dans la norme, on fait référence a un chapitre précis du Cadre conceptuel (par
exemple, aux paragraphes .001, .004, .009, .039). Or, il est mentionné au paragraphe 1.07 du Cadre
conceptuel que celui-ci ne fait pas partie des PCGR. Nous trouvons incohérent que des références
soient faites dans une norme a des concepts expressément exclus des PCGR. Comme mentionné
dans notre réponse au Cadre conceptuel, nous sommes d’avis que la mention faite au paragraphe 1.07
devrait étre retirée. Si ce n’est pas le cas, nous nous questionnons sur le bien-fondé de conserver les
références au Cadre conceptuel inclus dans le projet de norme SP 1202.
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Réponses du Vérificateur général du Québec
Exposé-sondage « Projet de chapitre SP 1202, “Présentation des états financiers” »
Date limite de transmission : 30 juin 2021

Base des conclusions

Il est indiqué a BC.024 d) que le déplacement de l'indicateur de 'actif ou passif financier net dans son
propre état donnait 'occasion au CCSP de déterminer si certaines entités du secteur public devraient
présenter cet indicateur. Or, il n’est pas mentionné dans le projet de norme SP1202 a quelles entités
cela s’applique ou pour quelles entités cela pourrait étre optionnel. Nous sommes d’avis que cela devrait
étre déterminé dans le cadre du présent projet et mentionné clairement dans la future norme SP1202.
Le méme commentaire s’applique au paragraphe BC.115.

Au paragraphe BC.065, on mentionne ceci : « La théorie comptable dont découle le modéle axé sur la
gérance (...) ». Nous ignorons a quoi on fait référence dans cette phrase puisque ce concept semble
peu connu. |l s’agit peut-étre d’un probléme de traduction, mais nous suggérons de modifier le libellé
afin qu'il soit plus compréhensible.

Nous suggérons de supprimer le paragraphe BC.145 concernant le capital-actions. Il est clairement
indiqué que seul le capital-actions émis peut étre comptabilisé dans cette composante de I'actif ou
passif net. Le paragraphe .145, en voulant préciser davantage par rapport aux transferts et aux préts,
semble permettre autre chose. Cela apporte plus de confusion que de précision et nous ne souhaitons
pas la création de surplus d’apport ou d’autres formes en capital que le capital-actions émis.

> Etes-vous d’accord pour que la date d’application de la norme sur la présentation des états
financiers, c’est-a-dire le chapitre SP 1202, soit le 1er avril 20247

Réponse

Etant donné que cela devrait toucher uniquement des éléments de présentation, le 1er avril 2024
semble raisonnable, a condition qu’il n’y ait pas de délai dans la publication de la norme.

Toutefois, les gouvernements auront a appliquer la norme SP1201 pour les exercices en vigueur le 1er
avril 2022, puis la nouvelle norme SP 1202 au 1er avril 2024. Par conséquent, nous nous questionnons
sur le fait de changer a deux reprises la présentation des états financiers dans un court délai. Le CCSP
pourrait se pencher sur cet aspect.
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C.C.:

I % I Treasury Board of Canada  Secrétariat du Conseil du Trésor
! Secretariat du Canada

Ottawa, Canada
K1A OR5

Michael Puskaric

Director

Public Sector Accounting
277 Wellington Street West
Toronto, Ontario

M5V 3H2

Dear Mr. Puskaric:

SUBJECT: Financial Statement Presentation, Proposed Section PS 1202, and related
Consequential Amendments

Thank you for the opportunity to comment on the Exposure Draft (ED) Financial
Statement Presentation, Proposed Section PS 1202. Our response to the specific questions posed is
provided in Appendix A below.

Our response to ED Consequential Amendments Arising from the Proposed Financial
Statements Presentation standard, PS 1202 is provided in Appendix B below.

If you have any further questions related to these comments, please do not hesitate to
contact either Blair Kennedy at blair.kennedy@tbs-sct.gc.ca (613-404-2996) or myself at
diane.peressini@tbs-sct.gc.ca (613-369-3107).

Yours sincerely,

D{MU/W’-‘——‘ -

Diane Peressini
Executive Director,
Government Accounting Policy and Reporting

Roch Huppé, Comptroller General of Canada
Roger Ermuth, Assistant Comptroller General, Financial Management
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APPENDIX A
Exposure Draft - Financial Statement Presentation, Proposed Section PS 1202

Responses to Questions Posed

1. Do you agree with the proposed new financial statement presentation standard?

Overriding comment: linkage to International Strategy

Due to the International Strategy adopted in 2020, in which PSAB decided to adapt IPSAS principles
when developing new standards, we believe that PSAB’s reporting model should be better aligned with
that of the IPSASB. Otherwise, we foresee significant issues going forward with this strategy. Please see
our responses below for further information on our concerns.

Our comments on proposed PS 1202 are as follows:

Proposals for “financial assets” and “financial liabilities”
While we agree with PSAB’s decision to present the net debt indicator (net financial liabilities/assets) in
a separate statement, we have the following significant concerns with the ED proposals:

Definitions — financial assets and financial liabilities
e We do not agree with the proposed use of the terms “financial assets” and “financial liabilities”
for items that do not meet the definition of financial instruments in PS 3450 Financial
Instruments.

o The sole purpose for the proposed use of the terms “financial assets” and “financial
liabilities” appears to be the development of the statement of net financial
assets/liabilities.

o The proposed use of these terms is inconsistent with that of all other standard setters,
and, consequently, reduces the comparability of PSAS financial statements to those of
publicly accountable entities in Canada that apply IFRS and to other public sector
entities applying IPSAS. Consequently, we suggest that the definitions of financial assets
and financial liabilities be aligned with those in IPSAS 41 Financial Instruments.

o The two categories that do not meet the definitions of financial instruments in IPSAS 41
are “inventories held for sale” and “unearned revenue”. For most public sector entities,
inventories held for sale are not significant, as indicated by the fact that there is no
separate PSAS for inventory. With respect to unearned revenue, conceptually, we do
not believe that this should be considered a financial liability, given that the resources
given up to satisfy the liability are goods or services rather than a financial asset.

e We do not agree with the proposed definitions of “financial assets” and “financial liabilities” as
we believe that they reduce the understandability of PSAS financial statements.

o Categorizing items that will, in the future, be converted into financial resources or
financial obligations but do not represent financial instruments (per PS 3450) at the
reporting date is neither transparent nor understandable for users of financial
statements. As well, excluding items such as endowments, which are clearly financial
instruments, from the “financial assets” category will reduce the understandability of
PSAS financial statements.
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o The carrying amounts of those items that meet the proposed definitions of financial

assets and financial liabilities but are not financial instruments do not necessarily
represent the future financial resources that will be received or sacrificed.
=  While we understand that, when inventory is eventually sold, resources will be
received that may be used to pay for future obligations, the carrying value of
inventory does not usually represent the amount that will eventually be
received. Inventory is not a present financial asset at the financial statement
date.
= Similarly, with respect to unearned revenue, although the resources received
will, in part, be used to discharge future financial obligations (such as payments
to employees for services rendered), the entity’s liability to pay for the goods
and services delivered arises only when the performance obligation is met.
Consequently, unearned revenue does not represent a present financial
obligation at the financial statement date, and the amount received does not
directly correlate with the amounts required to pay for the services performed.
Further, we believe that entities may have significant difficulties with the proposed
requirements to distinguish unearned revenue between that which is a financial liability
and that which is a non-financial liability. As well, the requirements related to capital
transfers, entailing reclassification of unearned revenue between the financial or non-
financial liability categories, is unnecessarily complex.
=  For some entities or transactions, there will often be a combination of
“financial” and “non-financial” unearned revenue, e.g. consider an entity that
delivers services based on a network that comprises employee services and
capital assets, or P3 arrangements that combine the user pay and financial
liability models.

Presentation in the statement of financial position
We do not agree with the requirement to present the proposed categories of “financial assets”
and “financial liabilities” on the statement of financial position.

O

O

We believe that this categorization on the statement of financial position is
unnecessary; its only purpose is to facilitate the preparation of the “statement of net
financial assets/liabilities”. This categorization is not a requirement under IPSAS or IFRS
and we believe that it reduces the understandability of the statement of financial
position for the reasons outlined above.

The proposed measure “net financial assets/liabilities” is by its nature an indicator. Like
other indicators, this measure may be derived from individual line items presented on
the statement of financial position. This calculation could be detailed in the “statement
of net financial assets/liabilities” or in the notes (see below).

Recommendations:

We recommend that the definitions of financial assets and financial liabilities be amended to
represent only financial instruments in the scope of PS 3450, thereby aligning with all other
standard setters, in particular the IPSASB and IASB.

We suggest that the proposed categories “financial assets” and “financial liabilities” be removed
from the statement of financial position, and that assets and liabilities be presented in order of
liquidity on this statement. PSAB may wish to consider whether the current/non-current
distinction required by other standard setters is relevant for Canadian public sector entities.
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Proposals for the statement of net financial assets/liabilities

As noted above, we do not agree with the proposals related to categorizing line items as “financial
assets” and “financial liabilities” that are not financial instruments on the statement of financial
position. In our opinion, the statement of net financial assets/liabilities should be limited to financial
instruments, as this will better reflect the financial resources presently available to discharge present
financial liabilities.

However, if PSAB does not support our recommendations above, we suggest the following amendments
to the proposed “statement of net financial assets/liabilities”:

We propose that PSAB rename this statement to better reflect the purpose of the indicator; for
example, the “statement of net contributions to/requirements for future financial resources”.
The line items that build up the indicator should be derived from the relevant line items on the
statement of financial position.

o We believe that it is important that items such as inventory or unearned revenue, which
are not financial instruments, are separately categorized on this statement, as their
carrying value does not necessarily represent the amount of future resources that will
be received or given up. Supporting note disclosure could be added as necessary to
distinguish the components of these line items that are expected to give rise to future
financial resources or financial obligations.

In addition, we believe that it is unnecessary to include a sentence explaining the net debt indicator on
the face of this statement, given the direction in the proposed Conceptual Framework that:

“3.13 In developing financial reporting concepts and standards, standard setters
presume that those who use the resulting information have a reasonable knowledge of
economic activities and some understanding of financial reports.”

Other items of concern:

Paragraph 1202.80 provides disclosure requirements for loans payable. Given that loans payable
are financial instruments, any disclosure requirements should be included in PS 3450 Financial
Instruments rather than in PS 1202.

While we agree with the requirement to report expenses by function or major program in the
statement of operations (.117(b)), there is usually a need to aggregate these amounts,
particularly for senior governments with many different programs. Therefore, to ensure clarity
of the requirements, we suggest that the ED states that the detail by function or program may
be provided on the face of the financial statement or in the notes, as considered necessary
when considering the categorization of expenses per paragraph.120.

Paragraph 1202.123 (new) states:

“When it is not practicable to allocate interest expense to main functions or programs, interest
expense may be presented as a separate line item.” For senior governments that issue debt
instruments, the allocation of the related interest expense by function or program is not
relevant to users of the financial statements. Therefore, having to demonstrate that it is not
practicable to allocate such interest costs should not be a requirement. Consequently, we
suggest that a policy choice be introduced to allow entities to present interest expense in a
separate line or by function/program on the statement of operations.
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2. Do you agree with the effective date of April 1, 2024, to implement the financial statement
presentation standard, Section PS 12027

We do not agree with the effective date of April 1, 2024. The proposed changes to the financial
statements will require systems changes that may take considerable time to implement.

e Given that entities are currently working through the implementation of 6 new standards (PS
1201 Financial Statements Presentation, PS 2601 Foreign Currency Translation, PS 3450 Financial
Instruments, PS 3280 Asset Retirement Obligations, PS 3400 Revenue and PSG-8 Purchased
Intangibles) we believe that the effective date for Financial Statement Presentation, proposed
Section PS 1202 should provide at least 3 full accounting cycles for implementation subsequent
to PSAB’s approval.
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APPENDIX B

Exposure Draft - — Consequential Amendments Arising from the Proposed Financial Statement
Presentation Standard PS 1202

Response to Question Posed
1. Do you agree with the consequential amendments outlined in this Exposure Draft?

Given that we do not agree with the proposed definitions of financial assets and financial liabilities,
and our belief that these terms should refer only to financial instruments as defined in PS 3450, we
do not agree with many of the consequential amendments arising from this proposed terminology.

e Based on our suggestion that the definitions of financial assets and financial liabilities be aligned
with those of the IPSASB, consequential amendments to the definitions of these items in the PS
3450 Glossary would be necessary.

e The proposed terminology “financial instrument assets” and “financial instrument liabilities” for
PS 3450 is very cumbersome and does not align with the pronouncements of the IPSASB or any
other standard setters.
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CAGFO PSA Committee Comments

The Conceptual Framework

Several people commented that this didn’t seem like significant changes — more of a fine tuning
of some of the concepts of the characteristics of generally accepted accounting standards and
principles

It was seen by some as taking existing principles, concepts, opinions, and related “sections,
guidelines and appendices and illustrative methods” as set out in 1150 and putting it in one
place in an updated format — a positive is that instead of looking at various articles, opinions and
writings, this does put it all together in an expanded format since the original section

Some wondered: what is the purpose of the change, what problem are we trying to fix? What is
the target we're trying to get to? 1.15 lists the objectives, and it was generally understood that
this was a ‘refresh’ intended to be future ready, yet still some questions about whether there
were other purposes or did the board consider specific pieces of the existing handbook to be
problematic. There were some concerns stated about the amount of change, new standards,
and the pace — not necessarily disagreement, but concerns of capacity.

7.08 Faithful representation — overall agreement on the characterization of faithful
representation; the idea that a set of standards can’t specify every possible disclosure that
might be required or not required. Professional judgment must be used given the myriad of
possible circumstances.

Representational faithfulness — While there were comments about the substance over form
conversations, there were positive comments that the new qualitative characteristics in chapter
7 make existing concepts clearer. People liked the concept of faithful representation. There has
been a perception that some characteristics are or have been more important than others, for
example, the belief that we need “perfect” information regardless of the cost. The balancing of
the characteristics overall is key. There were favorable comments here about the benefit versus
cost. While it’s important to get strong and verifiable numbers, spending excess time, staff
resources and money on getting from good to perfect detracts resources from other work that
users will find useful. Comments were made about the audit process here in that auditors can
often want more perfect information than is available and to a level that isn’t going to increase
the usefulness or “faithful representation” of the information. Management needs the ability to
determine certain thresholds and materiality within information and management then takes
the risk of those decisions. As users become more “demanding” and information becomes more
complex, this “nit picking” by auditors needs to be tempered. With many new standards coming
into play, such as ARO, and others into the future, it is important to get this implemented and
report the information. However, it is also important to note:

o ARO, pension obligations in the future, will have volatility due to factors other than
decisions made by the government. The changes in interest rates will impact the
present value. In reality, governments can make decisions about when/timing based on
market factors such that they will navigate and mitigate costs based on those factors.
There are concerns that the F/S, surplus, net debt will change from year to year in a way
that won’t seem reasonable to users/council/boards. This will add skepticism and
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reduce confidence in the information as it will cause large swings in the financial

position which may not be likely to occur.
Other comments, though, were that this language just flushes out and clarifies already existing
concepts which is also useful
7.12 - 7.14 Substance over Form — this created some discussion. The belief was generally that
legal form is quite black and white whereas the substance is grey and complex. The topic is
dichotomous because people want more specific examples and guidance but, at the same time,
recognize this is complex and requires individual solutions.
People generally felt this substance over form concept would cause more work and
“conversations.” “Substance” while it makes more sense and is necessarily grey to
accommodate complexity, could also lead to subjective opinions and biases. Do the assumptions
ever get questioned retroactively? That is, at what point is it better/more information as
opposed to an error which requires retroactive restatements? If a subjective opinion leads to a
substance over form application, who and how is it decided that this was an error? The concept
is that some of this may only be known in the future, i.e., at a future date we realize we were
incorrect. Guidance might be useful in this area as entities typically would favor not restating;
the idea is that, if the new information or change isn’t material, or if a change retroactively
doesn’t have an impact, then it seems unnecessary, however, if a change would be impactful
and we “should have/could have” done this differently, it seems a restatement is appropriate.

o The thought here is that, if there is more discretion and more “grey” area to
accommodate complex situations, that is a positive, however, it needs to be balanced
with skeptical review of the facts if they change. Example: an entity has a grey area over
whether a liability should be recorded and believe/prove that it doesn’t need to be
recorded based on the substance. However, the situation evolves such that there is
evidence that it is a liability — is this merely a change going forward? If there is greater
discretion, should the “bar” for retroactive restatement or considering this to be an
error be lower to provide a balance?

o Most also agree, though, that it’s important to look at the true nature of a transaction
which black and white application of legal form and agreements may not provide; while
there were questions around this, it was considered a necessary principle

o Examples would be helpful of the differences and how to apply them

2.27 Basis of accounting and 6.28-6.31

There was significant discussion around the sections 6.28-6.31

The bulk of the discussion was initially around some confusion on what is recommended versus
mandated. That is, does the budget have to be a PSAS budget or can there be a modified
budget/reconciliation/disclosure such that the actuals are compared to a PSAS budget (could be
approved budget or a modified/reconciled version of the approved budget). While this was
answered in the online Q&A forum, the conversation is still valid for future consideration.
Budgets are prepared in multiple different ways ranging from PSAS, partially PSAS, cash, cash
with some accruals taken into consideration, and PSAS. Certain items aren’t always budgeted for
either. The municipal/cities acts in each province legislate how the budget is to be prepared,
therefore, if the municipal act dictates a cash budget, it will be difficult to get to a PSAS budget.
Guidance would be helpful around this.
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Some cities do a PSAS budget but then there are explanations of how this relates back to cash in
the year and the general or other operating surpluses which are used to determine rates.
There was considerable discussion around the concepts of operating expenditures/cash out the
door, vs expenses on the F/S, and consideration of future costs such as closing the infrastructure
gap. A PSAS budget would look very different depending on whether a city is growing and
spending significantly on capital assets as compared to a city that is not spending on TCA and
has low amortization costs. This led to questions such as:

Should we disclose future capital costs such as the infrastructure gap in our notes? Is this any
different from ARO? ARO must be a legal obligation to be reported, but should there be
disclosure in the notes or other performance reporting on other future costs.

There was frustration expressed by multiple commenters around the apparent lack of assurance
around the budget. If the budget is an important document, and needs to be modified to PSAS
for comparison on the body of the SFP, then there should be some standards for faithful
representation around budget, consistency around the variance process, how surplus
transfers/reserves are used/moved around in a year. Budgets themselves aren’t audited nor is
there any requirement for external review or assurance of any kind other than as a comparison
to actuals on the F/S. After the fact.

Surplus is “below the line” which means prior year surplus (reserves, etc) isn’t revenue in the
current year, but it is in the budget. Current surplus transfers contribute to surplus, but are also
“below the line.” It’s not clear necessarily how surpluses work when one looks at the PSAS
statements which means this entire aspect of the budget and of public sector finances is often
not clear to the user. It might be prudent to have more requirements/disclosure around these
elements right in the F/S as notes or schedules.

Comments were that the budget is usually a public document which attracts a lot of
“importance” and resources while there is less importance or resources into financial
statements, audits and PSAS work. Institute of Internal Auditors has a standard that their work
should be adequately resourced. Professionals in the industry need to have reporting
independence and adequate resources. Otherwise, internal audit is not effective and can be
merely a check mark. Perhaps it’s time for a similar requirement with PSAS, audits and financial
statements. If PSAS are important for transparency and disclosure to the public and
stakeholders, then an external auditor should assess the “readiness” of an organization to meet
future requirements. Almost universally, those who deal with this work feel very unprepared.
There was a comment (agreed upon by others) that it appears the purpose of the
note/comment on the face of the SFP to state when the budget could not be prepared or isn’t
an original budget is to support good governance. A budget is an important document as is
comparison to the budget, therefore, if that isn’t or can’t be done, it is important for
stakeholders to be aware. If PSAS can be used to strengthen governance around the budget
and/or the reporting against the budget, that is a positive for stakeholders. Stakeholders need
to be able to rely on not only the budget but the “what we actually did” end results. A better
place, though, would be to require a note disclosure for how the budget is prepared, and other
pertinent information related to the budget and the budget process. The comments were that
not only is it a good idea to “prove” the budget is approved and original, but there should be
some standards around how budgets are created; standards that show diligence, accuracy, and
“faithful representation” in the variance process. Otherwise, any comparison to the budget isn’t

Page 65 of 288



useful. While budgets are an internal policy, the document is usually very publicly available; if
the intent is that the audited financial statements must show a comparison to the budget, then
the budget itself by extension should meet some parameters and be subjected to some level of
assurance

e Around the above concept, one group raised the possibility more specifically about PSAB or
some subset working with provinces, territories and others to get them in line with reporting
requirements and budget standards. One City is in a situation where they have to report based
on the legislation of 2 different provinces due to geographical location. The requirements are
significantly different. How comparable, then are we? We have a national set of standards but
provincial differences. We’re moving towards IPSASB but have provincial differences.

e The common concepts broadly agreed on were that:

e Budget should match what provinces ask for which is cash based, and the government
should/could have a reconciling note in the F/S to show how they got from cash to a PSAS based
budget for the SFP

o If the budget wasn’t what is required, this should be disclosed in a note but not on the face of
the statements, but there should be requirements around the budget itself and how it is
prepared

e Orsome felt it was a good practice to have the PSAS budget/reconciliation prepared for
inclusion in the budget document, if possible (that presents timing challenges with multiple
entities and differing year ends), even if it's a second budget or reconciliation as this shows the
budget was considered/prepared with PSAS and the end reporting results as a consideration.

e Virtually 100% consensus that PSAB should not dictate the budget, now or in the future,
especially not without the approval/collaboration of the provinces/federal government as to
PSAS or cash based; yet there was supported to have recommendations from PSAB for cities
that do a PSAS budget or on how to reconcile/present the differences. There was also support
for governance/SORP or even requirements that variances against the budget clearly indicate
transfers of surplus to/from reserves that occurred and the impact on the results

e People almost unanimously did not like the idea of the comment on the face of the SFP about
the budget. The F/S are audited. If there is a deficiency, that would be noted in the auditor’s
report or, if sufficiently deficient, there wouldn’t be a sign off. There is a place in note disclosure
for lack of compliance. Between the management letter, auditor’s report, note and the ability to
provide an opinion, that is enough discussion about whether or not the budget is suitable,
especially given the above comments.

e People wondered why this particular issue warrants a “red flag” on the face of the statement of
financial position when no other issues or problems have warranted that in the past. It seems to
put an unduly high level of importance to the budget even over and above the statements
themselves and financial information, yet there are no assurance requirements around the
budget; this seems contradictory.

Financial Reporting Model
e Statement of Financial Position

e Afew comments that they were pleasantly surprised at the new “look” as changes can
sometimes be for the sake of change and/or not an improvement. This appears to be a net
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“win” without excess change. While it is significant effort to modify accounting, create new
information and formatting in some audit/reporting systems, the information is already
available.

o Exception to this is that the remeasurement info isn’t available yet — it remains to be
seen how much effort that piece is.

Comments about the remeasurements statement — general agreement from those that
commented that it was a good choice to implement/approve the narrow scope amendment on
foreign exchange. For some entities, it makes more sense to include this in the surplus
immediately. For others, it makes more sense to report it separately to avoid the fluctuations
that may, or may not, ever become realized. However, there were comments and questions
about the ARO, and upcoming pensions standards. These have components that are based on
market rates/interest that can also cause significant fluctuations and also may not be realized.

o Commenters said that these big swings year over year make the F/S difficult to explain,
they don’t seem “real”, and it causes a lack of trust or increased skepticism around the
numbers. Organizations can make decisions to increase recycling, charge for garbage
and others thereby decreasing the speed at which a landfill is used which would
decrease the real cost. Decisions can also be made, usually, around how to cap and
close, some work can be deferred, new technologies arise that can decrease costs
between now and decades from now. Therefore, to have liabilities that increase
dramatically due to an interest rate change doesn’t seem “real.”

o Some of the concerns with the pension project are around this similar issue. Over time,
decisions have been made that would be difficult to change, and a realistic liability or
cost of post- employment benefits is reasonable to disclose or report. However, having
this number change year over year dramatically due to factors that may never happen
isn’t reasonable. Yes, F/S are the best information at the time, and many numbers, and
estimates can change. However, the longer the time frame, the more market factors
come into play which may cause fluctuations that will never be realized.

o Isthis an area that PSAB could consider allowing a remeasurement type of format?

Respondents liked/loved/were enthusiastic about the new look of the F/S and felt the “balance
sheet” looked more like what board, leaders and the public expect to see in a financial
statement. This would make it easier to read, understand and compare. No negative comments
about the new presentation.

One commented that it even looks more familiar to people who understand IFRS as compared
to the current F/S format.

There were questions around some of the newer pieces such as examples of a non- financial
liability or the “other” category; it can be difficult to visualize this if you don’t have real
examples in your own entity/government. The webinars provided some clarity around this, and
it was generally accepted that this was to leave room for the future “what may happen”
scenarios

Net Debt — people did agree users found this confusing and the new presentation gives it less
emphasis on the SFP such that users could go to the other statement for more information
which some will do, and others won’t. Divided opinions on the new statement with some
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believing it provided useful information with the ability to provide more detail while about 25%
felt it was unnecessary entirely and could be a note.

Some commenters didn’t like the name “accumulated surplus.” They believe it’s not intuitive to
most people. Most use the word equity when discussing this with leaders, boards, council etc.

O
O

Why not just call it equity was asked by a few commenters

It can be considered “owner’s equity” in that the owners are the rate payers/citizens to
whom the services/resources flow, in the opinion of some respondents

Itisn’t S per se that is owned by shareholders, but the purpose of the governments are
to provide services to constituents. Service capacity if a term being used more often and
as well in the exposure drafts, therefore, it was seen as logical that the beneficiaries of
that service capacity are the owners

If the term is maintained as accumulated surplus, then perhaps a description
somewhere that explains what this really is that could be used by governments in
general

While many do describe this as “balance sheet” or “income statement” and equity or
“retained earnings” the language used is.... the SFP is like the balance sheet,
accumulated surplus is like owner’s equity, but a more agreed upon term that all could
use would be helpful. People don’t want to be inconsistent with the intent of PSAB, but
they also want to be able to use language and know it’s acceptable to use. There wasn’t
any kind of consensus or even strong agreement on what term would/could be used
However, others didn’t like the idea of calling it owner’s equity, because while services
accrue to citizens, equity assumes cash is “owned” by the citizens or flows to them.
Equity sounds like profit and loss which isn’t the core of public sector financial
statements

These respondents agreed that accumulated surplus is more correct, but they use
“layman’s terms” when explaining these pieces to their constituents, council, boards,
politicians and other stakeholders.

Others felts that Equity is confusing as it reduces the concept that public sector is
different than private sector.

Most agreed this is a term that is important to explain to stakeholders in a depth
beyond what is in the F/S. Trying to put too much into the F/S would make them
cumbersome, so some details just need to be explained separately. This followed similar
thinking to why there shouldn’t be statements/disclaimers on the face of the SFP
(budget). Respondents around the disclaimers or explanations about the budget and/or
the explanation on the Net Assets statements felt that

= |look at the numbers for F/S which are objective
= The footnote/explanations are just messy, subjective and detract from the other
information

=  “Tell the story elsewhere”
While there were varying opinions on the language, it was acknowledged that what was
important was to have an opportunity to explain to stakeholders, such as boards/council
how public sector statements differ from the private sector; perhaps a statement of
terms, definitions would be helpful in the future to help describe these items in a way
that would/could be used broadly for consistency. About 25% didn’t like the term

Page 68 of 288



accumulated surplus, about 50% felt it was necessary and shouldn’t use terms like
equity and the rest had no opinion.

e Statement of changes in net financial liabilities or assets

O

Some wondered if this negated or replaced the current note disclosure on the
accumulated surplus; since we are now reporting several sections of information in one
statement, it’s concise. The comment in the draft is that one could have supplemental
information such as schedules, but it’s not needed/mandated

Seems this presentation reduces the required disclosure around the items that make up
accumulated surplus currently, subject to the comment below

e Since Net Assets will be broken into 3 components, and this is an important (albeit confusing to
some) component of financial statements, it is useful and informative to have a statement of
changes in net assets:

@)
O

o

This calls out the information right on a statement and not just in note disclosure

Makes more sense as to how surplus works, what comprises surplus, and how much is in
each category

Remeasurement statement is also a positive in now being able to (along with the related
standards) show unrecognized changes in certain elements

This could open a conversation that should be had around surplus

e Statement of net financial assets:

o

While this is a new statement, since it pulls from the existing data, it didn’t seem that
new to some commenters but also not much work to add this

People generally liked the option to include more explanation or not; in some situations,
it could be beneficial to put information here and thereby answer questions right in the
document. Others felt it was better to explain this in meetings using presentation
information that is more than could reasonably be captured here

People generally did not like the idea of including the meaning on the face of a financial
statement. Similar to comments about the budget comment on the face of the SFP,
people feel you shouldn’t have to explain this right on the statements. The explanation
could either be in a committee or related document, since typically an organization
would provide supplementary information, reports with the financial statements. If
deemed necessary, perhaps a note to explain the meaning/purpose of each statement.
Or include it in the discussion and analysis. Generally, it was believed most
organizations, when presenting F/S or annual reports, this type of explanation and
supplementary information would be in the form of an introduction, a committee
report, or other attached report. Some cities use a glossary at the end of the annual
report where this could also follow

It seemed, like the budget comment option on the SFP, to be odd to explain certain
pieces but not others. What makes a particular piece or comment more relevant than
the rest? If there are requirements that are particularly important, have a requirement
or SORP to include this information in an attached document, appendix, glossary, report
such that, when it goes public, the information is readily available.

Further, several felt this was not the most complicated piece as noted before, some find
the accumulated surplus/annual surplus/op surplus numbers to be confusing while
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others thought the remeasurement concept is confusing. There is no shortcut to having
good supplementary reports or information to present financial statements.

e Other comments

o Summary is that F/S aren’t stand-alone documents; they need schedules, notes and
supplementary information. Going forward, the new concepts and reporting are moving
in the direction of more information whether or not it’s in the annual report/Financial
Statements. Climate change, green accounting, compliance, more budget information,
variance information, risk, environment of the organization...the type of information
that is presented to rating agencies, financial institutions, boards could be a more
formal requirement to be attached to, form part of, or be presented publicly with
financial statements and these items could form part of that.

e Implementation Date:

o Many thought this would be a challenge. With ARO, a suite of standards around
exchange/portfolios, then the revenue standard, this is a lot to manage back-to-back
such that a new standard would be challenging.

o Comments that it would be good to get the ARO/others upcoming standards done, in
place and “socialized” before a change to F/S.

o The idea of having this early adoptable was good for those ready for it as they do like
the new look but believed there was a lot already going on especially with Covid 19
continuing.

o Some said it would depend on the guidance especially around the budget piece and
what might need to change/be disclosed.

o More work required around revenues and related contracts and agreements in order to
determine the “other side” which is the liabilities/non-financial liabilities

o Some wondered if PSAB could consider which pieces were impactful, i.e. were certain
sections more important for some PS entities to implement right away. If yes, then
could the board focus on narrow scope amendments or changes to legislation to allow
for those pieces. Allowing certain changes to be done soon would create support for
other changes. These items could be modified early and optional to adopt. Goodwill was
a term one respondent used.

e Covid-19 — no one or not many expected this to continue this long. While organizations and
people have adapted, this will have a lasting impact on how we work, engage with our teams
and so on

e Covid-19 is still impacting work. For the 2020 year, many of our people were existing staff,
trained and engaged. As people leave and new hires come on board, it has been difficult to on
board, train, engage with people and many leaders are feeling we’ve “lost people” or engage is
down. Until we can get back into physical spaces to meet, engage and conduct business, the
work is seen as more difficult this year by some. Some work is easily done remotely while other
work is manageable but not as smooth and yet more work is just better with in person
collaboration.

e The pandemic will continue to impact organizations as people come back to the workplace.
Some will come back, some part time and some will remain remote with, perhaps, occasional
meetings. This takes more time and energy to train and in some cases, monitor work
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People are under stress and duress. Many haven’t seen family, missed family occasions, and
haven’t been able to travel or take vacation and/or the vacation time isn’t what one would hope
for. When “the world” opens up, there will be a push from leaders, boards and council to get
even more work done. Simultaneously, exhausted people are going to want vacation and travel.
This is a real scenario. Capacity in 2021 and even 2022 will look different. In the accounting
industry and profession, work gets done by people not having balance. Too much work, too long
of hours, and continually tight deadlines. While this is a separate issue from ‘accounting
standards’ too big of a push too soon will lose support for important changes. This speaks to the
comments earlier around a requirement to appropriately resource work; work that is important
gets resourced and measured.
Overall, the summary is that the group generally feels it would be prudent to adopt and
implement ARO, Revenue, and the remeasurement related standards first and then have a bit of
time before the new presentation model. It is felt that, referencing municipalities in particular,
that the revenue standard could be more work than it appears and is on the heels of several
others. If ARO, remeasurement standards are all implemented for the year ending 2023, then
revenue in 2024, 2025 is quite soon and it is believed this is more of a change than it seems. An
early adoption provision should be provided for those that can, but where these other standards
are significant, there is likely significant work coming out of them for a couple of years.
o Lastly, a reiteration that examples would be helpful, that is, real examples of a
municipality or government F/S before and after the new reporting model as opposed
to theory.
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Michael Puskaric, CPA, CMA
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RE: Exposure Draft — Financial Statement Presentation, Proposed Section 1202

Thank you for the opportunity to comment on the above Exposure Draft. | am responding on behalf of the
Office of the Auditor General of Canada.

Given the importance of this document in terms of future public sector financial reporting, we are pleased
to submit to the Board our response below to the specific questions posed in the Exposure Draft.
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Lissa Lamarche, CPA, CA

Assistant Auditor General
Office of the Auditor General of Canada
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Specific questions posed by the Public Sector Accounting
Board (PSAB):

Question 1

Do you agree with the proposed new financial statement presentation standard?

OAG response:

We agree with the majority of the principles in the proposed new financial statement presentation
standard; however, there are a few areas where we do not agree with the proposals along with several
areas where we think clarifications or improvements to the proposals are needed, as outlined further
below.

Areas of disagreement include:

Meeting the Financial Statement Objectives (paragraph .039-.206)

Statement of net financial assets or net financial liabilities (paragraph .100-.104)

We do not agree with PSAB’s proposal in paragraph .102 which requires an explanation of the meaning
of the indicator of net financial assets or net financial liabilities on the face of this statement.

Currently, our PSAS entities provide an explanation of net debt in the notes to the financial statements.
Providing this explanatory information on the face of the statement is not consistent with other similar
information that is normally provided in the notes. We think that providing this type of information in the
notes respects the principle in paragraph 3.13 of PSAB’s ED: The Conceptual Framework for Financial
Reporting in the Public Sector which states that “...standard setters presume that those who use the
resulting information have...some understanding of financial reports.” We think that by putting this
information on the face of the statement, it could open the door to putting other similar information on the
face of the financial statements, which may ultimately diminish the overall understanding of financial
statements in general.

While presenting a sentence or two on the face of the statement as to what the indicator means may
allow the indicator to be better understood, we think there are better ways that PSAB can meet the
objective of educating its users.

Option to report the reasons for the change in net financial assets or net financial liabilities
(paragraph .152-.153)

We do not agree with PSAB’s proposal in paragraph .104 which allows entities to choose to provide
information about the change in net financial assets or net financial liabilities and the reasons for the
change.
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By making this statement optional we think this could lead to a lack of comparability if some entities
choose to present this statement and others do not. On the other hand, entities may simply not present
this information and thus comparability will be indirectly achieved. In our view, the most important aspect
of the change is the comparison of total actual capital expenditures incurred in the period with those
originally budgeted which is still required to be disclosed. Therefore, if senior governments are not
required to present this information, we think the option should be removed altogether in order maintain
comparability, understandability and accountability. In other words, we think that PSAB should revert to its
original proposal from the Statement of Principles whereby the changes in net financial assets or net
financial liabilities are not presented for any entity.

In addition, we note in paragraph .152 that this statement should be presented only if the information is
“‘understandable and useful for accountability purposes”. We find this modifier to be at odds with the
current requirement in the PSA Handbook to present a statement of changes in net debt. It would seem
that this information is currently considered understandable and useful for accountability purposes and
thus it is unclear what has changed that would render this information no longer understandable or useful.

We also find there is inconsistency in requiring a budget to actual comparison for the statement of
changes in net financial assets or net financial liabilities (for all items other than capital expenditures
which requires note disclosure of actual vs budget regardless) when this statement is optional. This also
seems to suggest that this statement does provide important accountability information.

Therefore, we think that this modifier should either be removed or PSAB should explain what its intention
was with respect to this modifier.

Areas which require clarification or improvement:
General Presentation Principles (paragraph .008-.038)

Fair presentation (paragraph .020)

We have concerns with the wording in paragraph .020 which addresses circumstances in which
legislation requires an entity to present information that is not consistent with the standards or the
Conceptual Framework. In these rare circumstances, this information is required to be clearly disclosed
as being inconsistent with the standards and/or the Conceptual Framework.

This paragraph seems to conflict with Presentation Concept 3 in paragraph 10.21 in PSAB’s ED: The
Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting in the Public Sector. Normally, when accounting treatment
is not consistent with the standards and/or the Conceptual Framework, it is considered a GAAP
departure. The meaning and intent of this paragraph is unclear and could be problematic as currently
worded. For example, a government could implement new legislation in order to recognize, report or
disclose something in a certain way even if it is not consistent with the standards. However, if the intent
was that it is possible to disclose additional information not required by a standard, then we would view
this as reasonable.

We recommend that PSAB clarify the meaning of paragraph .020 so it does not conflict with the concept
of a GAAP departure and the requirements in CAS 210.18 which requires the auditor to “agree whether
the additional requirements can be met through additional disclosures in the financial statements” or
whether the “description of the applicable financial reporting framework in the financial statements can be
amended accordingly.” Per CAS 210.18, if neither action is possible, it may be “necessary to modify the
auditor’s opinion”. We noted a similar comment in our response to PSAB’s ED: The Conceptual
Framework for Financial Reporting in the Public Sector.
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Going concern (paragraph .026-.030)

While we support the inclusion of the concept of going concern in the proposed conceptual framework,
we note that there could be tension between the proposed guidance on going concern versus the
guidance in PS 3430, Restructuring transactions. PS 3430.05(c) states that this Section does not deal
with “... discontinuance of operations that is not part of a restructuring transaction”. This implies that PS
3430 deals with the discontinuance of operations that is part of a restructuring. It is unclear how this
guidance links to the proposed guidance on going concern which states in paragraph .026 that (emphasis
added) “...Financial statements should...be prepared on a going concern basis unless the entity intends
to cease operating...”

In our experience, entities that cease to operate in the public sector often transfer their operations or
programs to other entities which may or may not be part of a restructuring. The Basis for conclusions for
PS 3430 paragraph 42 notes that “.... a public sector entity is a going concern”. We think it is therefore
important for PSAB to help users distinguish between restructuring transactions and entities that cease to
operate in their entirety which may trigger the presentation of financial statements which are not prepared
on a going concern basis.

Aggregating (paragraph .032)

On the issue of aggregation, we note that PSAB has sought to clarify when aggregation would be
required for immaterial items. PS 1202.032 specifies that “if immaterial items that do not share similar
characteristics are aggregated, the information should be disclosed in the notes about the composition of
the aggregated items...”

This requirement seems to contradict the concept of applying materiality and we question whether it will
lead to unnecessary disclosures of immaterial information which ultimately detracts from other more
significant disclosures. We note that this approach is not consistent with the approach taken by the
IPSASB in IPSAS 1.46 (emphasis added) which only requires disclosure in the notes of dissimilar items
aggregated on the face statements when that information is “sufficiently material”. We would encourage
PSAB to reconsider the inclusion of such a prescriptive requirement and clarify that disclosure is only
required when the information is sufficiently material.

Meeting the Financial Statement Objectives (paragraph .039-.206)

Restricted assets or liabilities (paragraph .051)

PS 1202.051 discusses assets for which their use is externally restricted in perpetuity (e.g. endowments).
While we acknowledge that including a discussion on restricted assets in the proposed standard is an
improvement over the existing standard, we think that it introduces an additional area of inconsistency
given that the proposed standard specifically addresses the impact of permanent restrictions on assets,
but does not specifically address temporary restrictions on assets. For completeness, we think that PSAB
should consider also addressing temporary restrictions.

Financial instruments (BC.095)

As explained in PS 1202.BC.095, we note that PSAB has proposed a consequential amendment to PS
3450, Financial instruments to refer to assets and liabilities that are financial instruments as financial
instrument assets or financial instrument liabilities in order to remove a resulting inconsistency between
the new definition of non-financial assets such as endowment investments held in perpetuity and financial
instruments accounted for in accordance with PS 3450.
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While we acknowledge that the proposed changes should help alleviate confusion between the two
standards, we do acknowledge the possibility that it may also increase confusion and diminish
understanding as PSAB moves away from common definitions that are used by other standard setting
bodies such as IASB or IPSASB. While we acknowledge that these changes are necessary to align with
the proposed calculation of net financial assets or net financial liabilities, we are somewhat concerned
that the complexity being introduced will lead to a decreased understanding rather than an increased
understanding of public sector financial statements.

In addition, while the proposed standard explicitly states that financial instruments may be presented as
financial or non-financial assets (PS 1202.051), it does not make the same explicit statement for financial
and non-financial liabilities although the same would be true as many liabilities that would be considered
financial liabilities under the proposed standard are not considered financial instruments (e.g. asset
retirement obligations or deferred revenue). We recommend that PSAB make this same explicit statement
for liabilities, modified for the circumstances that would apply to liabilities (e.g. items that are not
considered financial instruments that may be presented as financial liabilities).

Financial and non-financial liabilities (paragraphs .073-.091)

PSAB has introduced new classifications and definitions for the separate presentation of financial and
non-financial liabilities. We find the definitions to be somewhat confusing and think they will be difficult to
apply in practice. While we acknowledge that these two new classifications of liabilities align with the new
calculation of net financial liabilities or net financial assets, we are concerned, as outlined in the previous
section directly above, that the proposed definitions are overly complex and inconsistent with similar
definitions used by other standard setting bodies which may ultimately reduce understandability.

Recognizing that most liabilities will be classified as financial liabilities, we would encourage PSAB to take
a simpler approach to defining non-financial liabilities such as using the same simplicity as that used for
non-financial assets in this ED (PS 1202.005b) — i.e. that “A non-financial asset is an asset that does not
meet the definition of a financial asset”).

The current proposed definition of a financial liability in PS 1202.073 (emphasis added) indicates that it “is
expected to be settled using financial assets” while the definition of a non-financial liability in PS 1202.084
(emphasis added) indicates that it “cannot be settled through the use of financial assets”. With the

proposed wording for a non-financial liability, it would appear that non-financial liabilities would be rarer in
nature. However, we think that the situation could arise whereby a liability does not meet either definition.

For example, a performance type liability that is only expected to be settled with financial assets in the
case of a contract breach would not meet the definition of a financial liability because it is not expected to
be settled using financial assets, but equally it would not meet the definition of a non-financial liability
because it can be settled with financial assets. The difficulties with the current definitions can be further
illustrated by a capital transfer that must be used in providing services for a defined period of time. In this
example, PSAB has indicated that this would be classified as a non-financial liability once the tangible
asset is constructed or purchased. Oftentimes such agreements may require repayment if the asset is not
used as stipulated. In this case, it would seem that the definition of a non-financial liability is not met
because the obligation can be settled with financial assets in those circumstances. The proposed non-
financial liability definition seems to ignore intent and may lead to difficulties and inconsistencies in
classification.
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Furthermore, while we understand that PSAB expects unearned revenue to be presented as a financial
liability in the majority of cases, we think this concept may also be somewhat confusing, especially when
compared to prepaid expenses which are required to be presented as non-financial assets. PS
1202.BC.100 discusses the principle of spent and unspent contributions. We think that this principle may
be easier to understand and the definitions applied in the context of government transfers. We would
encourage PSAB to move some of this discussion to the main standard to help stakeholders make the
distinction between financial and non-financial liabilities and promote consistency in application of the
principles. While this added guidance would help address the classification of liabilities arising from
government transfers, it would not address other types of unearned revenue (e.g. deferred lease
inducements, deferred rental income, or prepayments) which may be more difficult to classify based on
the proposed definitions of financial or non-financial liabilities. As noted above, we think that PSAB should
consider simplifying the definition such that non-financial liabilities are those liabilities that are not
financial liabilities similar to the approach taken for non-financial assets and provide more application
guidance to help in this area.

Finally, we think that PSAB should consider adding a footnote to the illustrative examples which currently
presents unearned revenue as a financial liability, as some types of unearned revenue may be classified
as a non-financial liability.

In summary, while we are generally supportive of the direction PSAB is taking with respect to financial
and non-financial liabilities, acknowledging that this approach supports the new calculation and
presentation of net financial assets or net financial liabilities, we think that the proposed definitions will be
problematic, more guidance is needed in the standard, and we are questioning whether this proposed
approach will ultimately achieve PSAB’s objective of increasing understandability of public sector financial
statements. We would encourage PSAB to reflect further on these proposals to ensure that they lead to
an increase in understandability rather than a decrease.

Reporting changes in financial position (paragraph .105-.185)

PS 1202.109 mentions the optionality of presenting changes in net financial assets or net financial
liabilities but this paragraph does not align with the wording used in paragraph .152 which provides that
the change can be presented on the statement of net financial assets or net financial liabilities, “as long
as the information presented is understandable and useful for accountability purposes”. For consistency,
we think the wording in these two paragraphs should be aligned.

Statement of changes in net assets or net liabilities (paragraph .127-.151)

We think that PSAB should consider adding a budget component related to accumulated other such that
public sector entities are also held accountable for revenues and expenses recognized outside of surplus
or deficit and recognized directly in net assets or net liabilities. We think this would be an improvement to
the current proposals.

Share capital (paragraph .146-.150)

We note that PSAB has added a new section to address share capital. While we are supportive of the
inclusion of this new section as it addresses a current gap in the existing standards, we find the inclusion
of share capital to be somewhat inconsistent with PSAB’s decision not to add ownership interests as an
element in Chapter 8 of the proposed conceptual framework. The reasons provided in the Basis for
conclusions of that document include the fact that differentiating ownership contributions and government
transfers for many public sector entities was problematic (BC8.37) and yet PSAB has included a section
on share capital in PS 1202. While this proposal does specify in PS 1202.146 that “It is important to
distinguish issued share capital from other economic obligations (e.g. government transfers or loans)”, it
does not provide any guidance on what to consider in making this determination.
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While share capital in public sector entities may be rare, we do have entities with share capital. Based on
the current PS 1201, we have historically taken the view that since PSAB does not define ownership
interests as an element in its conceptual framework (unlike IPSAS), these interests should be recognized
through surplus or deficit. PSAB’s proposal does open the door to accounting that would be similar to how
IPSAS accounts for ownership interests but without the added guidance that IPSAS provides in Chapter 5
(paragraph 5.33-5.37) of its conceptual framework. We think PSAB’s approach could have unintended
consequences. We have seen instances whereby the government has provided cash infusions to public
sector entities to essentially fund program delivery through the entity’s issuance of shares, instead of
opting for traditional funding agreements / appropriations.

For example, if a government provides funding to a public sector entity through on-going preferred share
issuances by that entity, it could be argued that the preferred shares issued represent an investment in
the entity, but it could equally be argued that the funding provided through this mechanism is simply
another way of providing government funding to this entity. Without additional guidance on assessing
substance over form, it would be difficult to apply the existing guidance on a consistent basis.

We therefore recommend that PSAB consider whether a distinction should be made between shares
issued on the creation of an entity versus shares issued for other purposes (e.g. financing) as this may
also help with the substance over form assessment as well as improve consistency when accounting for
similar transactions, where appropriate.

In addition to the concerns we have raised above, we see a number of other inconsistencies in the PS

1202 proposals in relation to share capital as follows:

e Paragraph .132 states that (emphasis added) “decisions to recognize a revenue or expense arising in
a period outside that period’s surplus or deficit are made only in exceptional circumstances”. The
underlined wording may suggest that only revenues or expenses can be recognized outside of
surplus or deficit but it is not clear what PSAB considers ownership contributions or distributions to be
as they are not defined and these are not defined as elements in the proposed conceptual framework.

e Paragraph .147 states that (emphasis added) “when an entity has issued share capital, it should
report it as a separate component of net assets or net liabilities on the statement of financial position
and in the statement of changes in net assets or net liabilities” and yet paragraph .095 makes no
mention of share capital so it is unclear whether share capital is meant to be one of those
circumstances for which accumulated other is being used or whether share capital is meant to only be
disclosed in the notes as some sort of reserve. In addition, none of the illustrative examples in
Appendix A to F present this item. We think this lack of clear guidance may lead to a lack of
understandability and comparability may be diminished;

e There is no mention of share capital in the Statement of Cash Flow (SCF) section of the proposed
standard. While IPSAS 2.8 provides that in addition to borrowings, financing activities include
“changes in the size and composition of the contributed capital of the entity”, PSAB’s definition of
financing activities only includes debt. Without clear guidance on how share-type transactions should
be presented in the SCF, understandability and comparability may be diminished.

While share capital is rare in the public sector, it does occur and without clear and prescriptive guidance
there is a risk that public sector entities may turn to other sources of GAAP such as IFRS without due
consideration of the substance of these types of arrangements. Accounting for these circumstances is
very judgmental and, as PSAB noted, could be problematic which could ultimately lead to reduced
comparability, understandability and accountability over time. Therefore, we would strongly encourage
PSAB to add more guidance and remove the noted inconsistencies in order to fill this gap in current
standards.

Page 78 of 288



Retroactive application of accounting changes (paragraph .151)

Paragraph .151 specifically mentions PS 2120, Accounting changes which includes guidance on when
retroactive application for each component of net assets or net liabilities applies. We note that there are
also requirements for retroactive application in PS 2125.02 for first time adoption and PS 2510.51 for a
change in status of a government unit to a government business enterprise. For completeness, we think
that PSAB should consider broadening this section and mentioning all instances where retroactive
application might be required.

Statement of cash flow (paragraph .154-.185)

While we agree with the proposals put forth in this ED, we have identified some further areas of
improvement that could be made to the standard related to the SCF as follows:

e PSS 1202 introduces the concept of restricted assets such as those held in an endowment or those
with temporary restrictions. Restricted cash and cash equivalents are common in the federal portfolio
and we currently see mixed practice in how restricted cash and cash equivalents are treated in the
SCF. Some entities reconcile to all cash and cash equivalents, including restricted cash and cash
equivalents, whereas others present changes in restricted cash and cash equivalents as an investing
activity. In our view, presenting such items as investing activities appears somewhat counterintuitive
as increases in restricted cash or cash equivalents are presented as cash outflows and vice versa.
We think that the current reporting model project represents an opportunity to consider how restricted
cash and cash equivalents should be presented in the SCF;

e As mentioned in our comment under share capital above, we note that PS 1202.175 which describes
cash flow information related to financing makes no mention of changes in capital contributions (i.e.
share capital) unlike IPSAS 2. Given the new section on share capital, we believe PSAB should add
further guidance on its impact on the SCF;

o We note that the illustrative examples provided in the appendices include contributions from a third
party and endowment contributions as a financing transaction, yet the definition of financing activities
does not appear to include contributions but rather only debt. While this presentation is consistent
with PS 4200.52, the definition of financing activities in that standard is different than the current
definition in PS 1202.175. Although illustrative examples are only illustrative in nature, we think a
footnote should be added to this line item in the illustrative examples, similar to the footnote added in
the statement of financial position, so that it is clear that this is one possible presentation option and
does not presuppose that in the future this is how endowment contributions or contributions from third
parties would always be presented in the SCF, unless PSAB changes the current proposal on what
constitutes a financing activity;

e PS 1202.165 is a new paragraph which states that “information about the specific components of
historical operating cash flows is useful, in conjunction with other information, in forecasting future
operating cash flows.” We believe this statement is primarily relevant in the scenario where an entity
chooses to use the direct method and thus we think that PSAB should consider clarifying this
paragraph.

e The impact of foreign currency on cash flows is not currently addressed in PS 1201 although it is
explicitly addressed in IAS 7.28, IPSAS 2.39, and paragraph 30 of section 1540 of Part Il of the
Handbook. We think that PSAB should consider addressing the impact of unrealized gains and losses
arising from changes in foreign currency exchange rates; and

¢ Now that PS 3160, Public private partnerships (PPP) has been issued, we think PSAS should add
guidance on SCF presentation for these arrangements since we have seen different judgments in
practice regarding how payments made by a public sector entity to a private sector partner are
presented in the SCF. We have observed two main perspectives outlined below:

o Since the underlying asset being acquired through the PPP arrangement is a tangible capital

asset, the payments to the public private partner should be presented within investing
activities (similar to if the public sector entity had simply bought an asset directly); or
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o Since the payments made by the public sector entity are applied to reduce the PPP liability
balance, the payments to the public private partner should be presented within financing
activities (in much the same way as lease payments made in regards to a capital lease are
presented).

By adding such guidance to this standard we believe that users would benefit from enhanced
consistency, understandability and comparability.

Comparing actual financial performance to that budgeted (paragraph .186-.195)

Paragraph .194 discusses situations for which there are differences between the actual and budget
information related to the basis of accounting, accounting principles, scope or classification. In these
circumstances, this paragraph requires budgeted amounts to be restated. Footnote 31 explains that the
scope of a budget would be different than the scope of the financial statements (emphasis added) “if a
material entity or program is not included in the reporting entity’s approved budget.”

We are concerned with the underlined wording as it introduces the principle that a budget can be restated
if a new program is introduced that was not included in the original approved budget. This principle is not
consistent with current standards or practice whereby the introduction of new programs or funding does
not result in the use of an amended or restated budget, but instead triggers disclosure of variances,
where material. The principle in this footnote is also inconsistent with other paragraphs in this ED which
limit scope differences to situations where all components or all controlled entities are not the same. We
note the following paragraphs in this ED:

¢ 193 (c) which specifies that same scope of activities means “includes all components, where
applicable, and all controlled entities”;

e BC.151 which states that a difference in the scope of activities means “not all controlled entities
are included in the approved consolidated budget”;

e BC.153 which states that “scope adjustments would be the approved budgets of those controlled
entities that were not included in the approved consolidated budget for the reporting entity.”

e BC.155 which states that the intent of the proposal is to “encourage entities to budget for the full
scope of their activities, including those of their components and controlled organizations”;

e BC.159 which implies that for the introduction of new programs, “users’ best interests are served
by explaining the variance...rather than presenting an amended budget”.

The above paragraphs seem to contradict what is included in footnote 31 which expands the definition of
a change in scope to also include programs that were not included in the original budget. New program
announcements are commonplace and in our view should not result in the use of either an amended or
restated budget as accountability is best served by enhancing disclosures to explain the significant
variances in the financial statements and/or elsewhere that arise when a new program is not
contemplated in the original budget. Therefore, we think that PSAB should amend the footnote to remove
the reference to programs in the context of a scope difference.

When a budget is not prepared or approved (paragraph .196-.197)

We think that PSAB should explicitly state that the circumstances for which no budgets are prepared or
approved are expected to be rare. We also think there is an opportunity for PSAB to clarify its intent with
respect to PS 1202.196 which states that (emphasis added) “when budget information is not prepared or
approved...” We think this paragraph is meant to address circumstances where there is no budget or
other information prepared for which the entity is being held accountable. We think this is supported by
PS 1202.190 which explains that the original budget is the one for which the entity is held accountable. In
our view, in the rare circumstance where a public sector entity does not have a formal budget in a given
year, but has other types of financial figure approvals which apply the same rigour as a formal budget and
for which the entity is held accountable, we think it would be preferable to present this information along
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with disclosure that explains why a “budget” was not prepared as opposed to presenting no figures. We
think that accountability would still be met in these circumstances and that this approach aligns with the
spirit of PS 1202.BC.153 which states “The Board is of the strong opinion that it is in the public interest to
have an actual-to-budget comparison on the statement of operations for accountability purposes,
whenever possible”. Therefore, we think that PSAB should consider whether the guidance should be
clarified to allow for such a situation.

Use of an amended budget (paragraph .198-.201)

We are supportive of the proposals in this ED with respect to amended budgets, provided they are
restrictive enough to discourage behaviour that would diminish accountability.

As an example, we note that elections or changes in the governing bodies of government organizations
can happen at any time during a fiscal year. It seems therefore that an amended budget could
theoretically arise just before the end of a fiscal year and we question whether an amended budget would
be appropriate in those circumstances. On that basis, we think that PSAB should consider whether the
circumstances provided for amended budgets should be further narrowed in order to prevent an amended
budget from being used too late in a fiscal year as we think that accountability information would be
significantly diminished in those circumstances.

Disclosing non-compliance with financial authorities (paragraph .202-.204)

We note that PSAB has replaced “legislative authorities” with “financial authorities”. As noted in our
response to PSAB’s ED: The Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting in the Public Sector, we
understand that the intent of this change is consistent with the intent in the existing conceptual framework
(PS 1100.61) and the existing financial statement presentation standard, although existing requirements
do not specifically refer to financial authorities.

While it is logical to focus on financial authorities, this may unintentionally ignore other non-compliance
with authorities that may also be material to the financial statements such as when an entity operates
outside of its mandate or when an entity does not comply with certain directives provided. Given the
requirements in AuG-49, Reporting on Compliance with Specified Authorities for Transactions Coming to
the Auditor’s Notice During the Audit of Financial Statements, we think that using the term “financial”
authorities may unduly restrict disclosure in other significant areas.

On that basis, we think it would be helpful to provide specific examples and/or expand the explanation in
the Basis for conclusions to clarify that disclosure should be made for any non-compliances with
authorities that have a significant/material impact on the financial statements and should provide any
necessary information an informed reader would expect to find in the financial statements regarding non-
compliance with authorities.

Disclosing risks and uncertainties (paragraph .205-.206)

While we support the proposals, we are concerned with the principle in paragraph .205 of this ED which
could be interpreted to encourage financial statement disclosure about the risks and uncertainties that
could affect an entity’s financial position outside of what might be required in individual standards.

By including such a broad principle outside the proposed conceptual framework, there is a risk that
PSAB’s intention that this would not lead to disclosures of risks and uncertainties that are better suited for
disclosure outside the financial statements, may be undermined. Since the scope of PS 1202.002
indicates (emphasis added) that “other standards set out the...presentation requirements for specific
items, transaction and other events”, we encourage PSAB to reconsider whether this principle needs to
be retained in this proposed standard. Alternatively, the intent of this principle could potentially be
improved by moving the second sentence of paragraph .206 (i.e. “Individual standards set out the
disclosure requirements for various risks and uncertainties.”) to the end of paragraph .205 or by adding
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something to the Basis for conclusions which currently does not include a discussion of feedback
received in relation to this principle. This would make it clearer that the principle is not meant to lead to
disclosures outside of what is already required in other standards.

Other comments

o While the definition of financial assets has not changed, we noted that PS 1202.046(c)&(d) refers
to “contractual rights” as financial assets whereas PS 1202.043 also refers to contractual rights
which are not recognized in the financial statements but disclosed in accordance with PS 3380,
Contractual rights. We find that the concept of contractual rights in relation to both recognized
and unrecognized financial assets is somewhat confusing. We think that PSAB should consider
using different terminology so as not to confuse the two concepts. One such consideration could
be using recognized or unrecognized contractual rights terminology.

e PS 1202.087 discusses how performance obligations would be classified based on whether the
obligation “will be primarily settled with financial assets” or not. We would encourage PSAB to
provide guidance on what is meant by “primarily” as this may have a significant impact on the
categorization of net financial liabilities.

e PS 1202.095 discusses the three main components of net assets or net liabilities, without also
mentioning the additional component introduced in paragraph .147 related to share capital. We
think that paragraph .095 should include this component for consistency with the requirements in
the proposed standard.

e PS 1202.098 (emphasis added) allows disclosure of a more detailed breakdown of net asset or
net liability components in the notes, “if it provides understandable and useful accountability
information”. Adding such a qualifier to this paragraph suggests that PSAB may be trying to
discourage entities from providing a more detailed breakdown outside of the statement of
financial position. We think that PSAB should consider removing the underlined section of this
paragraph and instead provide guidance on what is meant by this qualifier.

Importance of Notes and Schedules (paragraph .207-.212)

We note a potential inconsistency with respect to paragraph .209 which requires consideration be given
to understandability of the financial statements when determining the systematic manner in which notes
are presented. This new paragraph could be viewed to be somewhat inconsistent with the requirement in
PS 2100.11 which requires all significant accounting policies be disclosed in one place.

We have historically interpreted PS 2100.11 to require that all accounting policies must be disclosed in
one note whereas many entities reporting under other frameworks such as IFRS have redesigned their
notes in recent years in response to improved communication of information in financial statements. We
also noted that this same approach (i.e. not requiring that all significant accounting policies be disclosed
in one note) is used by some of the IFRS entities in our portfolio that have reorganized their notes such
that disclosures required for specific items are combined with their related accounting policies which
helps to reduce duplication, enhance linkage between items, and improve understandability.

While PSAB has proposed a consequential amendment to PS 2100, Disclosure of accounting policies in
the ED: Consequential Amendments Arising from the Proposed Conceptual Framework which adds
paragraph .12 regarding the use of technology which may allow significant accounting policies to be
disclosed with their relevant notes, the requirement that all accounting policies be disclosed in one note
has been retained. Given that the intent of PSAB’s proposal (emphasis added) is to “improve
understandability and provide financial statement users with better information for accountability
purposes” (from the Effects for financial statement users section of the ED), we think this is an opportunity
for PSAB to also clarify whether the intent of PS 2100.11 is still to require that all accounting policies be
disclosed in one note or whether increased understandability might be achieved using other methods,
such as those seen in other frameworks in recent years.
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Appendices (A-F): lllustrative Financial Statements

We are pleased to see that PSAB has created illustrative financial statements for a broader range of
public sector entities. We think this will be helpful in seeing how the new requirements might be applied to
different types of public sector entities. We have a large number of other government organizations that
do not fall within health-related or colleges and/or universities and thus we think it would also be helpful to
include an illustrative financial statement for other government organizations, apart from governments
and those in specific subsectors. This would also give PSAB the opportunity to reflect share capital in an
illustrative example as share capital is more likely to arise in other government organizations.

In the table below, we have summarized the improvements that could be made to the illustrative
examples that are discussed in the above sections of this response as follows:

Item identified Section Discussed Impacted Appendices

Share capital Share capital (paragraph .146- | Could be included in an
.150) Appendix for other

government organizations

Contributions from third parties | Statement of cash flow Appendix A, B, D, E

or endowment contributions (paragraph .154-.185)

Unearned revenue Financial and non-financial Appendix A, C, D, E
liabilities (paragraphs .073-
.091)

Question 2

Do you agree with the effective date of April 1, 2024, to implement the financial statement presentation
standard, Section PS 12027

OAG response:

We agree with the effective date of April 1, 2024 to implement the financial statement presentation
standard since it is a presentation standard with no impact on recognition or measurement as we think
this should provide sufficient time from an audit perspective. However, we have concerns from a preparer
perspective. We understand that typically entities need between 18-24 months which also allows
sufficient time to ensure that budgets are aligned with the new presentation and while the proposed
effective date should be sufficient, given all the upcoming changes as explained below, PSAB may want
to consider delaying the effective date of PS 1202.

For example, there are a number of standards coming into effect in 2022, such as PS 3280, Asset
retirement obligations, PS 3450, Financial instruments, PS 1201, Financial statement presentation, PS
2601, Foreign currency translation, PS 3041, Portfolio investments, as well as in 2023 such as PS 3400,
Revenue, and PS 3160, Public private partnerships. On that basis, PSAB may want to delay the effective
date of PS 1202 to allow preparers additional time in light of the volume of standards coming into effect
over the next few years.

We also note a potential issue with respect to governments that have not yet adopted PS 1201 or PS
3450. With an effective date for those standards of fiscal years beginning on or after April 1, 2022, this
means that governments would need to change their presentation to adopt PS 1201 only to change
presentation again 2 years later to adopt PS 1202. We question whether this approach gives
governments sufficient time to prepare for all the upcoming changes.
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Michael Puskaric, MBA, CPA, CMA
Director, Public Sector Accounting Board
277 Wellington Street West
Toronto, Ontario M5V 3H2
June 23, 2021

Dear Michael Puskairic,

RE: Letter of Support for MFOA’s Submission Exposure Draft — The Conceptual
Framework for Financial Reporting in the Public Sector and Exposure Draft — Financial
Statement Presentation, Proposed Section PS 1202

| am writing to provide comments in support of the Municipal Finance Officers’ Association of
Ontario’s submission to the Public Sector Accounting Board’s (PSAB) Exposure Draft on the
Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting in the Public Sector and Exposure Draft for
Financial Statement Presentation, Proposed Section PS 1202.

As the Manager of Accounting for the City of Brantford, | believe the updated conceptual
framework and accompanying financial statement presentation should be grounded in the
principles of promoting accountability, promoting transparency, and not adding complexity for
the preparers and users of financial statements. Public sector enterprises, in particular
municipal governments, understand the importance of financial reporting as an accountability
measure to the general public and other levels of government. However, as identified in MFOA’s
submission to PSAB, some of the proposed changes within the Exposure Drafts carry
unintended consequences of adding confusion and complexity for both preparers and users of
financial statements.

To successfully update the Conceptual Framework and Financial Statement Presentation, |
support MFOA'’s recommendations:

1. Amend Chapter Two of the Conceptual Framework to clarify the goal of revising the
characteristics of public sector entities

2. Amend paragraph 2.69 to expand the definition of longevity as a characteristic of public
sector entities to provide more detail on what the term encompasses

3. Amend the definition of unique governance structure in paragraph 2.37 to make
reference to public sector entities’ unique interdependency on other levels of
government to fulfill their obligation to serve the public

4. Amend paragraphs 2.65-2.67 to provide clarification to non-exchange transactions, in
particular, within the context of the volume of non-exchange transactions

5. Amend paragraph 2.19(C) to remove the word “generally’ from the description of
taxation

6. Further clarification is needed within the proposal for public sector entities to
communicate that it is not the intent of PSAB to alter the way in which municipal budgets
are currently prepared. Rather, it should be clearly stated that a secondary budget
summary or some other means of communication is recommended, clearly providing
information as required under O. Reg. 284/09 and any further information as may be
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deemed necessary, that transitions the traditional budget document such that it can be
presented on the same basis as the financial statements

7. Reconsideration of the timing of PS 1201 and PS 1202 and/or consider blending the two
reporting models to limit the number and frequency of changes that will be required

8. Amend paragraph 3.20 so labour force only includes recognition of value based on
current usage and payment for services

9. Amend paragraph 3.20(A) to explicitly state user fees as a way to raise public resources

10. Amend paragraphs 7.08-7.11 to maintain the term “reliability” instead of “faithful
representation”

11. The terms “economic resources” and “economic obligations’ are not as intuitive as the
terms “assets” and “liabilities” for users of financial statements. More clarity should be
provided in the definitions under the Glossary

12. Amend paragraphs 9.37-9.40 to provide clarification on the concept of Going Concern to
add the potential for public sector entities to end through sale, amalgamation, etc.

13. Replace “accumulated surplus or deficit” with “accumulated results of operations” in PS
1202 in order to reduce inherent biases by users of financial statements

14. Amend paragraph .005 in PS 1202 to provide clarification on the differences between
financial and non-financial assets and liabilities

Please note that, within the municipal sector, the budget document is deemed to be the most
important financial document produced by municipalities. Coupled with regular financial
reporting, the budget document supersedes the value of the financial statements to municipal
councils in almost all circumstances. Public sector entities share the common goal of providing
accountability and transparency to the general public, but time, clarity, and resources are
required for meaningful work to be completed. Should you wish to follow up on this letter, please
contact Wanda Harding at wharding@brantford.ca.

Sincerely,

unole. ectig

Manager of Accounting

cc. Donna Herridge, Municipal Finance Officers’ Association of Ontario (donna@mfoa.on.ca)

Page 85 of 288


mailto:donna@mfoa.on.ca
mailto:wharding@brantford.ca

Michael Puskaric, MBA, CPA, CMA
Director, Public Sector Accounting Board
277 Wellington Street West

Toronto, Ontario M5V 3H2

June 22, 2021

Dear Michael Puskaric,

RE: Letter of Support for MFOA’s Submission Exposure Draft — The Conceptual
Framework for Financial Reporting in the Public Sector and Exposure Draft — Financial
Statement Presentation, Proposed Section PS 1202

| am writing to provide comments in support of the Municipal Finance Officers’ Association of
Ontario’s submission to the Public Sector Accounting Board’s (PSAB) Exposure Draft on the
Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting in the Public Sector and Exposure Draft for
Financial Statement Presentation, Proposed Section PS 1202.

As the Treasurer of the Village of Westport, | believe the updated conceptual framework and
accompanying financial statement presentation should be grounded in the principles of
promoting accountability, promoting transparency, and not adding complexity for the preparers
and users of financial statements. Public sector enterprises, in particular municipal
governments, understand the importance of financial reporting as an accountability measure to
the general public and other levels of government. However, as identified in MFOA's submission
to PSAB, some of the proposed changes within the Exposure Drafts carry unintended
consequences of adding confusion and complexity for both preparers and users of financial
statements.

To successfully update the Conceptual Framework and Financial Statement Presentation, |
support MFOA’s recommendations:

1. Amend Chapter Two of the Conceptual Framework to clarify the goal of revising the
characteristics of public sector entities

2. Amend paragraph 2.69 to expand the definition of longevity as a characteristic of public
sector entities to provide more detail on what the term encompasses

3. Amend the definition of unique governance structure in paragraph 2.37 to make
reference to public sector entities’ unique interdependency on other levels of
government to fulfill their obligation to serve the public

4. Amend paragraphs 2.65-2.67 to provide clarification to non-exchange transactions, in
particular, within the context of the volume of non-exchange transactions

5. Amend paragraph 2.19(C) to remove the word “generally’ from the description of
taxation

6. Further clarification is needed within the proposal for public sector entities to
communicate that it is not the intent of PSAB to alter the way in which municipal budgets
are currently prepared. Rather, it should be clearly stated that a secondary budget
summary or some other means of communication is recommended, clearly providing
information as required under O. Reg. 284/09 and any further information as may be
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deemed necessary, that transitions the traditional budget document such that it can be
presented on the same basis as the financial statements

7. Reconsideration of the timing of PS 1201 and PS 1202 and/or consider blending the two
reporting models to limit the number and frequency of changes that will be required

8. Amend paragraph 3.20 so labour force only includes recognition of value based on
current usage and payment for services

9. Amend paragraph 3.20(A) to explicitly state user fees as a way to raise public resources

10. Amend paragraphs 7.08-7.11 to maintain the term “reliability” instead of “faithful
representation”

11. The terms “economic resources” and “economic obligations’ are not as intuitive as the
terms “assets” and “liabilities” for users of financial statements. More clarity should be
provided in the definitions under the Glossary

12. Amend paragraphs 9.37-9.40 to provide clarification on the concept of Going Concern to
add the potential for public sector entities to end through sale, amalgamation, etc.

13. Replace “accumulated surplus or deficit” with “accumulated results of operations” in PS
1202 in order to reduce inherent biases by users of financial statements

14. Amend paragraph .005 in PS 1202 to provide clarification on the differences between
financial and non-financial assets and liabilities

Please note that, within the municipal sector, the budget document is deemed to be the most
important financial document produced by municipalities. Coupled with regular financial
reporting, the budget document supersedes the value of the financial statements to municipal
councils in almost all circumstances. Public sector entities share the common goal of providing
accountability and transparency to the general public, but time, clarity, and resources are
required for meaningful work to be completed. Should you wish to follow up on this letter, please
contact Joe Whyte (jwhyte@villageofwestport.ca).

Sincerely,

Si ure

cc. Banna Herridge, Municipal Finance Officers’ Association of Ontario (donna@mfoa.on.ca)
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Welch LLp

June 24, 2021

Michael Puskaric, Director

Public Sector Accounting Board (PSAB)

277 Wellington St. West

Toronto ON M5V 3H2

RE: Conceptual Framework and Reporting Model Exposure Drafts

Dear Michael:

We are pleased to submit our views on PSAB’s Exposure Drafts for a revised Conceptual Framework and
Reporting Model.

Overall, we support the proposals set out in PSAB’s exposure drafts. However, there are specific issues
we would like the Board to consider before finalizing, set out in the Appendices attached to this letter.

We thank the Board for the opportunity to comment.
Sincerely,

Welch LLP

o

Umar Saeed, MAcc, CPA, CA

Partner

Welch LLP - Chartered Professional Accountants
1070 - 36 Toronto Street, Toronto, Ontario, M5C 2C5
T: 647-288-9200 ext: 412, F: 647-288-7600

cc: Clyde Maclellan, Chair, PSAB
Chris Meyers, Partner, Welch
Shawn Kelso, Partner & Director of Professional Standards, Welch
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APPENDIX A

Do you agree with the concepts in the proposed Conceptual Framework?
Yes.
Please consider the following issues before finalizing:

1. Consider how public sector financial reports may be aggregated for statistical purposes (national or
subnational)

Government financial reports prepared on an IPSAS basis are used by the EU, Eurostat, IMF, World Bank, OECD,
etc. to gather economic statistics. While entity-level accountability remains important, an additional objective of
financial reporting that the IPSASB considers is this notion that on aggregate, the accounts of a nation should make
sense too.

This additional objective may help inform decisions PSAB must make about symmetry of standards. Clarifying
PSAB'’s view toward this objective will help resolve future decisions PSAB will face when it revisits contentious
standards such as government transfers and leases, and may also help improve consistency in application of
existing standards where control of assets or entities are being considered (3Ps).

The idea that, on aggregate, we should strive not to double-count assets and obligations is simple and intuitive to
the public. When we view each accounting issue with the sole focus on the entity-level statements, we risk too
many case-by-case exceptions leading to unnecessary inconsistency in the application of PSAS standards.

While we do not believe symmetry should drive financial reporting principles, we do believe it is a practical “tie-
breaker” when trying to develop recognition criteria relating to complex transactions. When we say our financial
reports is for the public and its legislature, we should consider how intuitive it is for the average person to grasp
the concept that one entity has a payable and the does not have a receivable, or that the same asset has been
recorded in two different sets of books.

2. Consider adding stewardship to risks and uncertainties under objective 6

We believe that by adding stewardship to objective 6, it enables PSAB to address the many non-financial issues
tied to public sector stewardship.

For example, accounting for natural capital will be a standards-level project that PSAB hopes to address in the
future. The revised conceptual framework should provide the tools for PSAB to deal with this in the future. We
believe the best tool available to deal with many issues related to natural capital assets, natural capital stock
(depletion), and non-financial sustainability issues and risks will be note disclosures in the financial statements
(please see Appendix B for further details on how this may be achieved).

However, with PSAB’s primary financial reporting objective being accountability — the Board should maintain a
broader view toward how note disclosures might enhance accountability and stewardship where specific
transactions will not meet recognition criteria.

For example, GASB 77 Tax Abatement Disclosures requires cities and state governments in the United States to
disclose tax abatement arrangements with private companies, including the estimated revenues foregone because
of the arrangement. Governments often provide tax incentives to entice companies to operate out of their specific
jurisdiction. However, these deals result in a reduction of future revenues for years to come. The GASB disclosure
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provides timely accountability so that the government making the decision is transparent about foregone future
tax revenues.

3. Can a liability be a provision?

A provision is defined as a liability with uncertain timing or amount. PSAB proposes that a liability meet three
essential characteristics, one of which [8.19(b)] requires the future transfer or use of economic resources “...at a
specified or determinable date.”

We already record provisions under the PSAS framework. Employee future benefits, contaminated site liabilities,
asset retirement obligations are all examples where specific obligations do not have payment dates that are known
at the time of accrual. However, we note that if a liability requires a specific or determinable date to be relieved,
many liabilities many not meet this recognition criteria and therefore could go unrecorded.

We believe PSAB may want to revisit its liability definition given the IPSAS has a standard on provisions, PSAB
effectively requires certain liabilities to be recorded as provisions, and there may be future standards or
amendments that the Board would like to accommodate to permit the recognition of liabilities with uncertain
timing.

4. Role of confirmatory and predictive value contradicts accountability objective

We agree with the overarching underlying principle of accountability as the objective of public sector financial
reports. However, the discussion on relevance, and in particular, confirmatory and predictive value, would appear
to apply to private sector firms — not public sector entities.

Please reconsider how financial reports provide value to the users of financial statements in the public sector. We
would expect the information value created from public sector reporting would be centred around timely
accountability over government decision-making, stewardship over publicly entrusted resources, and transparency
surrounding material financial decisions and transactions.
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APPENDIX B

Do you agree with the proposed new financial statement presentation standard?
Do you agree with the effective date of April 1, 2024, to implement the financial statement presentation
standard, Section PS 1202?

Yes.
Please consider the following issues before finalizing:
PSAB is unnecessarily prohibiting the recognition of intangible assets

Paragraph .070 - .072 prohibit the recognition of intangible assets, other than purchased intangible assets. We
have read the basis for conclusions and we ask that PSAB reconsider its position in light of the following recent
events:

1. Permitted recognition of purchased intangibles

2. Emerging trends in accounting

3. Public sector stewardship over natural capital

1. Permitted recognition of purchased intangibles

Purchased intangible assets come in many forms (licenses, rights, patents, etc.). PSAB permitted the recognition of
purchased intangibles to address a reporting and compliance issue among indigenous government financial
reports. Due to the prohibition, purchased licenses (like fishing licenses) were treated as expenses instead of
assets. As these assets were absent from the balance sheet, it created the impression of poor financial condition.
There were compliance consequences because of this prohibition.

PSAB’s logic was to permit the recognition of an intangible asset, where it met the criteria of an asset. We believe
this logic may be extended to all types of intangible assets.

We recognize the history behind the prohibition. There may be sovereign governments that want to recognize
intangible assets such as the infinite capacity to tax or the value of crown lands, water, and minerals, as the value
of these assets would more than offset the existing government debt and future tax burden. The mere act of
recognizing such assets could wipe out annual deficits through accounting gains. We recognize this is a risk for
PSAB in setting standards, however, we believe other standard setters globally have navigated this risk without
broadly prohibiting the recognition of intangible assets.

2. Emerging trends in accounting

Private sector accounting standards have recognized a problem with financial reporting: economic value is created
by intangible investments (IT infrastructure, Intellectual Property, Human Capital, etc.). Accounting rules treat
these costs as period expenses, and as a result, this approach systematically fails to recognize one of the most
significant assets to a modern business.

PSAB should consider existing guidance under IPSAS on intangible assets and heritage assets, which are recognized
under certain conditions. IPSAS also has an active project on natural capital assets. Looking to the future, it seems
evident that tracking of cost information on intangible investments (even where criteria for capitalization are not
met) will likely be relevant information to be reported on.

PSAB should reconsider these prohibitions on how it might conflict with emerging and future trends in financial
reporting globally.
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3. Public sector stewardship over natural assets

We believe PSAB should reconsider its prohibition on recognizing natural capital assets, as there is an intermediate
step toward achieving accountability and stewardship over natural capital. This involves permitting recognition of
these assets but requiring them to be valued at nominal values where there is no historical cost.

Governments are stewards of Canada’s vast natural resources (ie. Forests, water, minerals). We have noted the
progressive interest PSAB takes in hearing about these issues and trying to determine how to achieve the
accountability objective in a manner that fits the financial reporting framework. The Board’s pursuit of this goal is
in line with its mandate.

However, the problem of recognizing natural capital assets present many challenges — the largest one being
valuation. What value should we record natural resources that a government has acquired them with no historical
cost?
e Should we value our forests, fresh water, minerals in the ground at their prevailing market rate as
commodities? Or at their economic values in use?
e Should we value them at their ecological value to the environment and to the earth? In other words, if
these assets were gone, what additional costs would we incur to reproduce their ecological benefits?
e Should we value them at their habitable value to the neighboring communities? Are these natural assets,
in substance, heritage assets?

There are sound mathematical models and approaches to measure these various values. Obtaining the values is
not an issue. However, the accounting challenge remains the same:

e There is no historical transaction price;

e There is no consensus on the best valuation approach.

We believe that the intermediate step toward achieving accountability over the stewardship of natural assets is to
completely separate recognition from measurement. The objective of recognizing natural assets, even at a nominal
value, will prove to have immediate and practical benefits because it will enable PSAB to provide relevant guidance
on natural capital without the need for a measurement guidance. For example:

e Recognizing natural assets at zero enables you to record improvements to natural assets as capitalized
costs, as opposed to costs that are expensed because there is no asset to ascribe them to. The Town of
Gibson’s illustrated this concept by investing in nature to address storm water drainage. Rather than to
create a physical, concrete facility (the costs of which would be represented a new tangible capital asset),
it invested in re-landscaping to create natural drainage for storm water to the surrounding areas (all costs
expensed, because it was an betterment to a natural asset, which is prohibited from recognition).

e Investments into creating man made forests and parks, such as urban forests, could be considered
natural assets if there was no prohibition. Again, if a city invested in a concrete facility that captured
carbon from the air — there is no accounting issue. The costs of such an investment are recognized as an
asset. How is the creation of an urban forest or park any different?

e Finally, recognizing natural assets (at nil cost) is the first step toward broader accountability disclosures
over natural capital. While there are philosophical differences in determining the appropriate
measurement base to value natural assets, there is no debate that Canada has a finite stock of natural
capital and that stock is depleting. Disclosure standards tracking the estimated total stock and annual
depletion of forests, mineral, fresh water reserves is immediate accountability over natural capital. Such
a disclosure is not only achievable, but also powerful, as over time it enables the public to understand the
rate of depletion for natural capital stock significant to that jurisdiction.

These three examples simply illustrate how it is possible to achieve accountability over natural capital (existing and

future investments made) without having a valuation framework in place. However, they do require PSAB to
permit recognition of natural capital assets at nominal values.
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June 24, 2021

By email: info@psabcanada.ca

To: Michael Puskaric, CPA, CMA
Director, Public Sector Accounting
Public Sector Accounting Board
277 Wellington Street West
Toronto ON M5V 3H2

From: The City of Calgary
Re: PSAB Exposure Draft — Financial Statement Presentation
Purpose:

The purpose of this memo is to provide to the Public Sector Accounting Board (PSAB) the City of Calgary’s (“The
City” or “City”) commentary and input on the proposed accounting standards — PS 1202 Financial Statement
Presentation Exposure Draft issued January 2021.

All references made to the standard are in red.

Responses to Questions:

1. Do you agree with the proposed new financial statement presentation standard?
City Response:

The City is in agreement with the proposed new financial statement presentation standard except section
“Comparing actual financial performance to the budgeted” — Paragraph .186-.201 (the “Section”). The City finds
there are specific points in the Section which could use further clarifications. Our comments are below:

a) Section .186 - The City is in agreement with presenting a comparison of actual to original budgeted
amounts on the Statement of Operation, and would appreciate receiving further guidance on what an
“originally” approved budget is and the approval process, such as timing, oversight, and governance,
particularly in a multi-year budgeting environment This is with context to The City’s process of approving
a four year budget plan with annual budget revisions that are formally approved by Council in November
for each successive year.

b) Section .193 - Clarification is required on whether this section is limited to the Statement of Operations or
extend to note disclosures such as budget to actual comparison requirements for expenses by object.

c) Section .195 - This section does not appear to be consistent with Section .187. If the original approved
budget for a new controlled entity is not included, it would not be a good comparison for budget to actual.
Therefore, it would be helpful to interpret what scope change(s) should be considered during the
accounting period. The City has concerns over using an original approved budget when it has a new
controlled entity and the new entity has its own approved budget. Clarification is required on reporting
entity scope changes, such as a new controlled entity. The City is proposing consolidating the budget of a
new controlled entity as part of the Statement of Operations if a new controlled entity is material.

Page 93 of 288


mailto:info@psabcanada.ca

Responses to Questions (continued):

Original: Section .195 (New) When the scope of the reporting entity changes during the accounting period,
the original approved budget would be presented on the statement of operations.

Recommendation: Section .195 When the scope of the reporting entity changes during the accounting
period, the original approved budget would be presented on the statement of operations. The original
approved budget includes the approved budget of a new controlled entity, if material in nature.

d) Section .197 — The City is in agreement that the reporting entity is not considered to have an approved
budget for the consolidated reporting entity if it does not have an approved budget for a controlled entity
and the controlled entity is material. The City believes further guidance is warranted on:

i) distinguishing the line between when to disclose and when not to disclose, for example, when a
reporting entity does not have approved budget for several immaterial controlled entities but material
in the aggregate, and

i) whether a controlled entity needs to have its budget approved by its own Board of Directors?

2. Do you agree with the effective date of April 1, 2024, to implement the financial statement presentation
standard, Section PS 1202?

City Response:

PSAB is proposing this Section applies for fiscal years beginning on or after April 1, 2024. The original effective
date for The City would be fiscal year 2025.

The City is proposing the effective date of fiscal years beginning on or after April 1, 2027 (this Section would
become effective for The City in fiscal year 2028). The City is making this request due to the pandemic and
considerable standards to be implemented in the coming years, such as Financial Instruments, Asset Retirement
Obligations, and Revenue. Further discussion is needed in regards to items such as amortization, accretion, etc.
for budget presentation on the Statement of Operations. There will be challenges in providing appropriate
understanding of the accrual basis of amortization, accretion, etc. Perhaps further requirements to discuss
compliance or “balanced budgeting” under provincial requirements, such as Municipal Government Act, Section
243, versus what is in the financial statements, requires further disclosure so that readers of the financial
statements can have comfort that the budget is balanced, and the main differences pertaining to “budgeted
amortization, accretion, etc.” is for accounting purposes only.

Conclusion:

Our responses to your questions take into consideration The City stakeholders and ultimately the users of the
annual consolidated financial statements of The City and their needs. The City strives to continue developing a
high degree of public knowledge and trust, and delivering value for our citizens.

Thank you for your consideration of our responses. If you have any further questions, please contact me at (403)
268-1734.

Sincerely,

Nicole Hiscock, CPA, CA
Financial Reporting Officer
The City of Calgary
Nicole.Hiscock@calgary.ca
(403) 268-1734
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Respondent No: 1 Responded At: Jun 27, 2021 19:18:13 pm

Login: jsilvestre Last Seen: Jun 27, 2021 22:26:00 pm
Email: jsilvestre@surrey.ca IP Address: 97.107.191.71
Q1. Do you agree with the proposed new financial Yes

statement presentation standard as described
in Exposure Draft, “Financial Statement
Presentatlon, Proposed Sectlon PS 1202”72

Q2. Please provide comments to explain your response above.

With the revised presentation of the financial statements, users will see familiarity and there will be a closer conformance
with financial statements prepared from other accounting frameworks (IFRS, ASPE, etc). More specifically, under the
statement of financial position, the revised presentation will certainly be more in line with the Balance Sheet statement. This
increases the understandability for most non-financially litarate readers as they can relate with owning assets {i.e. home,
car, investments) and liabilities (i.e. mortgages, leases). A breakdown of the net assets {liabilities) following this section is
equivalent to the residual equity portion for most corporations and can be easily comprehended. Although we do believe
the use of current and long-term would have provided better clarity to the primary users rather than the use of financial and
non-financial to subcategorize assets and liabilities.

Q3. Do you agree with the effective date of April 1, Yes
2024, to Implement the financlal statement
presentation standard, Section PS 12027

Q4. Please provide comments to explaln your response above.

Although we have no issue with the effective date, there are numerous new presentation changes, addition of new
statements to the financial statements, and implementation of new standards, there may be some that will require more
time. Therefore additional time could be considered as many of the smaller local government entities may not have the
available resources to properly review the impact of the changes to the financial presentation or implement the necessary
system changes.

Q5. Do you agree with the proposed conssquential Yes
amendments outlined in Exposure Draft,
“Consequential Amendments Arising from the
Financlal Statement Presentation Standard,

Proposed Section PS 1202”7

Q6. Please provide comments to explaln your response above.

No further comments.
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PROVINCIAL AUDITOR
of Saskatchewan

June 24, 2021

Michael Puskaric, CPA, CMA
Director, Public Sector Accounting
Public Sector Accounting Board
277 Wellington Street West
TORONTO, ON M5V 3H2

Dear M. Puskaric:

Re: Exposure Drafts: Financial Statement Presentation, Proposed Section PS 1202 (January
2021) and Consequential Amendments Arising from the Proposed Conceptual Framework
(January 2021)

With respect to the Exposure Draft on Financial Statement Presentation, Proposed Section PS 1202, as
set out in the attachment, we continue have concerns about the transparency of the model as currently
presented.

With respect to the Exposure Draft on Consequential Amendments Arising from the Proposed Conceptual

Framework, we agree with the proposed amendments. The attachment sets out a suggested
improvement.

Yours truly,

Gty Fip—

Judy Ferguson, FCPA, FCA
Provincial Auditor

JR/dd

Attachment

1500-1920 Broad Street, Regina, SK S4P 3Vz
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Michael Puskaric, CPA, CMA

June 24, 2021

Responses to Specific Questions — Provincial Auditor Saskatchewan

Financial Statement Presentation, Proposed Section PS 1202 Page 1

Question Response

Financial Statement Presentation, Proposed Section PS 1202 (January 2021)

1 Do you agree with the proposed new financial statement We are generally in agreement other than the following:
presentation standard?
General Presentation Principles

Fair Presentation .020: We disagree with the paragraph as we find the
proposed wording can interpreted to sanction preparing general-purpose
financial statements inconsistent with the PS standards and the Conceptual
Framework where legislation requires an entity to measure and recognize
differently from the standards and/or Conceptual Framework. We further find
paragraph .020 inconsistent with the proposed Conceptual Framework Entity-
specific information that suggest entities may supplement the core financial
statement requirements with additional information as long as it does not
conflict with those core requirements.

Meeting the Financial Statement Objectives

Definitions — Financial and Non-Financial Liabilities: We find the proposed
definitions (paragraphs .073 and .084) confusing, and are uncertain if the
distinction of whether they are expected to be settled using financial assets will
be workable in practice. We also find the construct of the definition of non-
financial assets (does not meet the definition of a financial asset [.059]) simpler
and less prone to misinterpretation than the construct of the definition of non-
financial liabilities (.084).

We agree with the intent of this standard as not to include any recognition
criteria. However, contrary to this statement, the definition in PS 1202.005d
(i.e., clause “excluded from as noted in paragraph PS1202.71”) includes
recognition criteria. We suggest PSAB consider revising this definition to
remove recognition criteria for consistency purposes.

Statement of Net Financial Assets or Net Financial Liabilities .102: We question
the placement of meaning of the indicator on the statement. We think
placement within the notes of the financial statements would be consistent with
purpose of notes as reflected in paragraph .207 (clarify and explain
items....reported on the face of financial statements).

Option to Report the Reasons for the Change in Net Financial Assets or Net
Financial Liabilities (paragraph .104) While we agree with giving small entities
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Responses to Specific Questions — Provincial Auditor Saskatchewan
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Question Response

the option of reporting reasons for the change in net financial assets or net
financial liabilities, we think it should be required reporting for senior
governments given their greater level of complexity. In addition, making it a
requirement would help users understand changes in one of the critical
measures of a government’s financial performance and facilitate comparability
between senior governments.

Comparing actual financial performance to that budgeted (paragraphs .186 to
201). This section refers to budgets being approved by appropriate authorities.
We suggest PSAB consider providing additional guidance as to what
constitutes “appropriate authority” particularly for situations where legislatures
of senior governments do not approve overall budgets (like Saskatchewan).

Amended Budget (.198) We disagree with allowing amended budgets. Rather,
we think, new governments should explain variances from the originally
approved budget within the Financial Statement Discussion and Analysis;
explanations may include changes made under its control (e.g., different
priorities, new programs or removal of programs).

Do you agree with the effective date of April 1, 2024, to No, we do not agree the proposed effective date of April 1, 2024 would be in
implement the financial statement presentation standard, the public’s best interest in that some senior governments would be adopting
Section PS 12027 two different significant standards within a two-year period.

This would occur for governments, such as the Government of Saskatchewan,
that have not yet to adopted PS 1201 (effective date of on or before April 1,
2022). While governments have had substantive time to prepare for the
adoption of PS1201, users of the statements will face two significant changes
within a short timeframe, which may in turn impair their ability to understand
them.

Other comments: We have identified the following potential area of improvement:

Comparative Information .034 - .036: We suggest PSAB consider adding
guidance to preparers in situations where classification and scope change from
the prior reporting period. Providing guidance in this area would be consistent
with PSAB’s current practice of providing guidance on changes in accounting
policies (e.g., disclosure details and impact of the change).
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Question

Response

Share capital .146-.150: We suggest PSAB consider adding guidance in
relation to accounting for share capital in the public sector. While share capital
in public sector entities may be rare, lack of clear guidance in this area
increases the risk associated with such arrangements (i.e., due to the use of
judgement, consideration of the substance of such arrangements—share
capital versus other economic obligations). Improved guidance would promote
comparability and understandability across public sector entities.

Budgets: In addition to requiring budgets be presented in the statement of
operations, we suggest PSAB require budgets be presented in the statement of
financial position. In our view, such a requirement would be in the public’s best
interest as it would support holding governments to account not only its
revenues and expenses (an annual focus), but for its financial position (a
longer term focus).

Consequential Amendments Arising from the Proposed Conceptual Framework (January 2021)

Other comments

We have identified the following potential area of improvement:

Given the proposed guidance in PS1202 about going concern, we suggest
PSAB the need for consequential amendments to PS3450 to make clear the
difference between:
e restructuring transactions resulting from instances where operations
and related assets and liabilities are transferred as part of a
restructuring, and
¢ instances where entities cease operations and hence are no longer a
going concern.
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‘t VAUGHAN

June 21, 2021

Michael Puskaric, MBA, CPA, CMA
Director, Public Sector Accounting Board
277 Wellington Street West

Toronto, Ontario M5V 3H2

Dear Michael Puskaric,

RE: Letter of Support for MFOA’s Submission Exposure Draft — The Conceptual
Framework for Financial Reporting in the Public Sector and Exposure Draft — Financial
Statement Presentation, Proposed Section PS 1202

| am writing to provide comments in support of the Municipal Finance Officers’ Association of
Ontario’s submission to the Public Sector Accounting Board’s (PSAB) Exposure Draft on the
Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting in the Public Sector and Exposure Draft for
Financial Statement Presentation, Proposed Section PS 1202.

As the Deputy City Manager, Corporate Services, City Treasurer and Chief Financial Officer of
the City of Vaughan, | believe the updated conceptual framework and accompanying financial
statement presentation should be grounded in the principles of promoting accountability,
promoting transparency, and not adding complexity for the preparers and users of financial
statements. Public sector enterprises, in particular municipal governments, understand the
importance of financial reporting as an accountability measure to the general public and other
levels of government. However, as identified in MFOA’s submission to PSAB, some of the
proposed changes within the Exposure Drafts carry unintended consequences of adding
confusion and complexity for both preparers and users of financial statements.

To successfully update the Conceptual Framework and Financial Statement Presentation, |
support MFOA'’s recommendations:

1. Amend Chapter Two of the Conceptual Framework to clarify the goal of revising the
characteristics of public sector entities

2. Amend paragraph 2.69 to expand the definition of longevity as a characteristic of public
sector entities to provide more detail on what the term encompasses

3. Amend the definition of unique governance structure in paragraph 2.37 to make reference
to public sector entities’ unique interdependency on other levels of government to fulfill
their obligation to serve the public

4. Amend paragraphs 2.65-2.67 to provide clarification to non-exchange transactions, in
particular, within the context of the volume of non-exchange transactions

5. Amend paragraph 2.19(C) to remove the word “generally’ from the description of taxation
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11.

12.

13.

14.

Further clarification is needed within the proposal for public sector entities to communicate
that it is not the intent of PSAB to alter the way in which municipal budgets are currently
prepared. Rather, it should be clearly stated that a secondary budget summary or some
other means of communication is recommended, clearly providing information as required
under O. Reg. 284/09 and any further information as may be deemed necessary, that
transitions the traditional budget document such that it can be presented on the same
basis as the financial statements

Reconsideration of the timing of PS 1201 and PS 1202 and/or consider blending the two
reporting models to limit the number and frequency of changes that will be required
Amend paragraph 3.20 so labour force only includes recognition of value based on current
usage and payment for services

Amend paragraph 3.20(A) to explicitly state user fees as a way to raise public resources

.Amend paragraphs 7.08-7.11 to maintain the term “reliability” instead of “faithful

representation”

The terms “economic resources” and “economic obligations’ are not as intuitive as the
terms “assets” and “liabilities” for users of financial statements. More clarity should be
provided in the definitions under the Glossary

Amend paragraphs 9.37-9.40 to provide clarification on the concept of Going Concern to
add the potential for public sector entities to end through sale, amalgamation, etc.
Replace “accumulated surplus or deficit” with “accumulated results of operations” in PS
1202 in order to reduce inherent biases by users of financial statements

Amend paragraph .005 in PS 1202 to provide clarification on the differences between
financial and non-financial assets and liabilities

Please note that, within the municipal sector, the budget document is deemed to be the most
important financial document produced by municipalities. Coupled with regular financial reporting,
the budget document supersedes the value of the financial statements to municipal councils in
almost all circumstances. Public sector entities share the common goal of providing accountability
and transparency to the general public, but time, clarity, and resources are required for meaningful
work to be completed. Should you wish to follow up on this letter, please contact Nancy Yates,
Controller.

Sincerely,

P S P i
AN e o = /C D ( ;

Michael Coroneos CPA
Deputy City Manager, Corporate Services, City Treasurer and Chief Financial Officer

cc. Donna Herridge, Municipal Finance Officers’ Association of Ontario (donna@mfoa.on.ca)

Page 101 of 288

City of Vaughan, 2141 Major Mackenzie Drive, Vaughan ON L6A 1T1 Tel. 905-832-8585 www.vaughan.ca


mailto:donna@mfoa.on.ca

Page 102 of 288
City of Vaughan, 2141 Major Mackenzie Drive, Vaughan ON L6A 171 Tel. 905-832-8585 www.vaughan.ca


http://www.vaughan.ca/

Michael Puskaric, MBA, CPA, CMA
Director, Public Sector Accounting Board
277 Wellington Street West
Toronto, Ontario M5V 3H2
June 22, 2021

Dear Michael Puskairic,

RE: Letter of Support for MFOA’s Submission Exposure Draft — The Conceptual
Framework for Financial Reporting in the Public Sector and Exposure Draft — Financial
Statement Presentation, Proposed Section PS 1202

| am writing to provide comments in support of the Municipal Finance Officers’ Association of
Ontario’s submission to the Public Sector Accounting Board’s (PSAB) Exposure Draft on the
Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting in the Public Sector and Exposure Draft for
Financial Statement Presentation, Proposed Section PS 1202.

As the Treasurer of the City of Thunder Bay, | believe the updated conceptual framework and
accompanying financial statement presentation should be grounded in the principles of
promoting accountability, promoting transparency, and not adding complexity for the preparers
and users of financial statements. Public sector enterprises, in particular municipal
governments, understand the importance of financial reporting as an accountability measure to
the general public and other levels of government. However, as identified in MFOA’s submission
to PSAB, some of the proposed changes within the Exposure Drafts carry unintended
consequences of adding confusion and complexity for both preparers and users of financial
statements.

To successfully update the Conceptual Framework and Financial Statement Presentation, |
support MFOA'’s recommendations:

1. Amend Chapter Two of the Conceptual Framework to clarify the goal of revising the
characteristics of public sector entities

2. Amend paragraph 2.69 to expand the definition of longevity as a characteristic of public
sector entities to provide more detail on what the term encompasses

3. Amend the definition of unique governance structure in paragraph 2.37 to make
reference to public sector entities’ unique interdependency on other levels of
government to fulfill their obligation to serve the public

4. Amend paragraphs 2.65-2.67 to provide clarification to non-exchange transactions, in
particular, within the context of the volume of non-exchange transactions

5. Amend paragraph 2.19(C) to remove the word “generally’ from the description of
taxation

6. Further clarification is needed within the proposal for public sector entities to
communicate that it is not the intent of PSAB to alter the way in which municipal budgets
are currently prepared. Rather, it should be clearly stated that a secondary budget
summary or some other means of communication is recommended, clearly providing
information as required under O. Reg. 284/09 and any further information as may be
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deemed necessary, that transitions the traditional budget document such that it can be
presented on the same basis as the financial statements

7. Reconsideration of the timing of PS 1201 and PS 1202 and/or consider blending the two
reporting models to limit the number and frequency of changes that will be required

8. Amend paragraph 3.20 so labour force only includes recognition of value based on
current usage and payment for services

9. Amend paragraph 3.20(A) to explicitly state user fees as a way to raise public resources

10. Amend paragraphs 7.08-7.11 to maintain the term “reliability” instead of “faithful
representation”

11. The terms “economic resources” and “economic obligations’ are not as intuitive as the
terms “assets” and “liabilities” for users of financial statements. More clarity should be
provided in the definitions under the Glossary

12. Amend paragraphs 9.37-9.40 to provide clarification on the concept of Going Concern to
add the potential for public sector entities to end through sale, amalgamation, etc.

13. Replace “accumulated surplus or deficit” with “accumulated results of operations” in PS
1202 in order to reduce inherent biases by users of financial statements

14. Amend paragraph .005 in PS 1202 to provide clarification on the differences between
financial and non-financial assets and liabilities

Please note that, within the municipal sector, the budget document is deemed to be the most
important financial document produced by municipalities. Coupled with regular financial
reporting, the budget document supersedes the value of the financial statements to municipal
councils in almost all circumstances. Public sector entities share the common goal of providing
accountability and transparency to the general public, but time, clarity, and resources are
required for meaningful work to be completed. Should you wish to follow up on this letter, please
contact Trish Malmborg at Trish.Malmborg@thunderbay.ca

Sincerely,

i

- (
-«:ifir“i--ﬁ' o) CeAA—T~
/
|

cc. Donna Herridge, Municipal Finance Officers’ Association of Ontario (donna@mfoa.on.ca)
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Antonella Risi

From: Peter Weltman <PWeltman@fao-on.org>
Sent: Friday, June 25, 2021 2:56 PM

To: Antonella Risi

Subject: FAO Response to PSAB PS1202
Attachments: image007.png; image006.png

This email originates from an external source. Do not click on links or
respond to emails from unfamiliar senders. Ce courriel provient d’'une
source externe. Si vous recevez un courriel d’'un expéditeur inconnu, n’y
répondez pas et ne cliquez pas sur les liens qui s’y trouvent.

Hi Antonella,

I’'ve had a chance to review the documents (and even the video), and we’ve had some discussions internally as
well. 1did not discuss this with Yves Giroux.

We aren’t heavy users of audited financial statements- most of our work relies on assessing government’s
fiscal projections and economic forecasts, or interim/unaudited quarterly descriptions of program expenses.

That being said, we are strongly supportive of the changes being proposed in PS1202:

- Net debt is always an interesting discussion, and we welcome any opportunity for further clarity. In
public policy, there needs to be a distinction between debt undertaken for investments that will
benefit future generations (and future taxpayers), against those that benefit the current generation.

- We agree that separating liabilities into financial and non-financial does better describe the character
of public (vs private) sector finance

- While | think that requiring the financial statement to include an approved budget amount on the
same accounting basis as the final amounts is noble, our frustration has always been the ability to
obtain a reasonable time-series of data for any particular government spending program. These
programs undergo name changes regularly, especially upon the election of a new government (which is
the exemption the standard gives for allowing exceptions to this rule). Bottom line- while this might
work for a year or two in the middle of a government’s mandate, | foresee exceptions being the rule at
the higher orders of government, maybe not as much at the municipal/local level.

Thanks for allowing us to review and provide some input. While I’'m not sure we have much to add, | think we
learned a lot on our side by being included in the process.

Best- Peter

Peter Weltman

Financial Accountability Officer / Directeur de la responsabilité financiere
416.475.9227 | pweltman@fao-on.org
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Antonella Risi

From: Hillan, Luke (MOF) <Luke.Hillan@ontario.ca>

Sent: Tuesday, June 29, 2021 9:25 AM

To: Antonella Risi; Martha Jones Denning

Cc: Doherty, Elizabeth (MOF); Yu, Cameron (MOF); Kandeepan, Ken (OFA); Hudecki, Michael
(MOF)

Subject: Feedback re: Financial Statements / Conceptual Framework

This email originates from an external source. Do not click on links or
respond to emails from unfamiliar senders. Ce courriel provient d’une
source externe. Si vous recevez un courriel d’'un expéditeur inconnu, n’y
répondez pas et ne cliquez pas sur les liens qui s’y trouvent.

Antonella and Martha,

Thank again for providing us with the opportunity to comment of PSAB proposed changes to financial
statements and the conceptual framework. We also appreciate the accommodation you have provided us by
extending the initial deadline for comments to the end of June as well as presenting at an inter-provincial
information session a few weeks ago. While many of the concerns raised by the Office of the Budget and the
Ontario Financing Authority were already raised in the inter-provincial session, wanted to close the loop and
ensure we provided written feedback as well.

PSAB Proposed Amendment: Budget amounts on financial statements should be presented using the same basis
of accounting, following the same accounting principles, for the same scope of activities, and using the same
classifications as the actual amounts.

Because the budget is the key accountability document flexibility should be retained in the financial statements
to present actual amounts as compared to budget based on the presentation provided in the budget document.
This is even more evident with the separate presentation of COVID-19 Time-Limited Funding in the expense
outlook of the 2021 Ontario Budget.

PSAB Proposed Changes to Net Assets/Debt Calculation and Presentation in the Financial Statements

This increased level of detail would be a real challenge for budgeting where financial positions are not budgeted
for directly. Currently net debt is budgeted for by taking accumulated surplus/deficit and adding back net
investment in tangible capital assets. These changes will introduce significant challenges to the budget process
in projecting the Net Financial Assets/Liabilities. In the absence of a projected Balance Sheet it would be
impossible to project net debt on the basis of the new PSAB requirements for Public Accounts. As a result the
net debt and related ratios such as net debt to GDP, net debt to revenue will not be comparable to the actual
results in the Public Accounts leading to significant confusion on the part of investors, Rating Agencies and the
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general public on the fiscal performance of the Province. Further, the removal of non-financial liabilities from
the calculation such as deferred capital contributions is not appropriate as they still represent obligations of the
Province. These complex changes would also need to be applied retroactively.

PSAB Proposed Change to Include Unrealized Gains/Losses in the Proposed Statement of Changes in Net
Assets/Liabilities

The inclusion of unrealized gains and losses could give readers of the financial statements the impression that
the government has more/less assets available to provide services or settle liabilities. These financial measures
are better left for inclusion in the notes to the financial statements.

Furthermore, the creation of components of Net Assets/Liabilities such as “remeasurement gains/losses” and
“accumulated other” and recording revenues and expenses to these components creates uncertainty regarding
the fiscal impact of the Province. Since it is very challenging to forecast remeasurement gains/losses in the
Annual Budget, this inclusion represents another source of potentially material variance with the Public
Accounts.

Thank you again for the opportunity to provide comment. We look forward to working with PSAB to enhance
transparency in government financial reporting. Please do not hesitate to contact me if | can be of further
assistance.

Regards,
Luke Hillan
Director, Fiscal Policy

Ontario Ministry of Finance
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Ministére
des Finances

P
Québec ez

Contrdleur des finances

Québec, le 30 juin 2021

Monsieur Michael Puskaric, CPA, CMA

Directeur, Comptabilité du secteur public
Conseil sur la comptabilité dans le secteur public
277, rue Wellington Ouest

Toronto (Ontario) M5V 3H2

OBJET : Commentaires sur I’exposé-sondage "Projet de chapitre SP 1202,
« Présentation des états financiers »"

Monsieur,

Vous trouverez ci-joints nos commentaires concernant |’exposé-sondage
mentionné en objet.

Nous sommes généralement en accord avec les propositions de cet exposé-
sondage.

Nous espérons que nos commentaires vous seront utiles dans la poursuite de
vos travaux et vous prions d’agréer, Monsieur, nos salutations distinguées.

La controleuse des finances,

% %\ QAANA__

Lucie Pageau, CPA, CA

1058, rue Louis-Alexandre-Taschereau
Aile Jacques-Parizeau, 2¢ étage
Québec (Québec) G1R 5T2
Téléphone : 418 643-0284
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ANNEXE

QUESTION DU CCSP - COMMENTAIRES DU CONTROLEUR DES FINANCES

1. Appuyez-vous le projet de nouvelle norme sur la présentation des états financiers?

Nous sommes généralement en accord avec les propositions de cet exposé-
sondage. Nous souhaitons toutefois faire part au CCSP de certains points qui, a
notre avis, doivent étre modifiés ou clarifiés.

Nous voulons d’abord faire un commentaire général qui s’applique a ’ensemble
du projet de chapitre SP 1202 PRESENTATION DES ETATS FINANCIERS (SP 1202). Nous
sommes d’avis que l'utilisation des notes de bas de page pour apporter des
précisions aux exigences du chapitre SP 1202 devrait étre évitée. En effet, des
précisions sur des éléments aussi importants que les passifs financiers et les
passifs non financiers devraient étre incluses dans une annexe au chapitre SP 1202
et non dans des notes de bas de page.

Les principaux commentaires ci-dessous sont présentés selon Uordre des
p